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1. SA LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND GENERAL INFORMATION

Registerad Name: South African Library Tor the Blind

Registration number: Mot Applicable
Physical address: 112 B High Street

Maknarda

6139

Postal address:

Makhanda

&340

Telephone numbers:

Fax number:

B Box TS

77 - (0456 622 T226

(D)6 B22 46545

Ermail address: cooidsalborg.za

Waebsite address: wewsalbuorgza

External auditors: Auditor General South Africa

Bankers:

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMNS

WIFD

Standard Bank; ABSA Bank

scressible Book Consortiurm

Annual Financial Statements

Auditor Ceneral of South Africa

Audit and Bisk Comrnithoa

Broad Bazed Black Economic Empowerment
Chief Executive Offficar

Chief Financial &fficer

Digital Accezsible Infarmation System
Bepartment of Sport, Arts and Culture
International Federation of Library Associations
Mermber of Executive Council

Madiurm Term Expanditure Framework
nMational Departiment of Public Works

Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1909
South African Braille Authonty

SA Library for the Blind

Supply Chain Management

Treasury Begulations

Werld Intellectual Property Organisation
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3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

The Sharehalder's Compact consisting of the Librany's Strategie Plan, Annual Petformance Plan and varous othor
governance documents wenz signed by the honocurabhe Minister of Sport, Arts & Cultures, Ziz Koowa and Mr. Xolisa
Yekani on behalf of the SALB Board. The Campact commits the
Board and Mamagement o ji= fiduciary responsibilities and the
achiwevernont of set petformance objectives Tor the year. The Board
of the Sauth African Llbrary for the Blind monitored the
implernentation and progress of the librany’s financial and
perforrmance related responsibilities during meetings that took
place during, May 2022, Movernber 2022, March 2023 This.year no
fraud and Risk management issues registered by both the Board
and Auditors The Board ks satisfied to report that the Management
and Staff of the Library achioved 98% of the cet objectives for the
werar. The fibrary experienced very positive spin offs with reference
to delivery and distnbutionof ibrary materials to the clients, SALB

owes all these credits o the Josie Wood Trust that secured funds

for the appointment of courier seryvices o expedite the processes:
Other distribution strategies for dissermination of ibrary reading rmaterial and devices are being explored and sheauld

be implemented in the next financial period,

Bevanue of R41, 331 with Operating costs of 33797 with asurplus of &7 502 was recorded for the financial year 2022
2023 The surplus costs are predomimantly due to the nature of classifying production costs as capital expenditure

as wall asunalignment of the conditional grant allocation by Provincial libraries tocoour annual planning procosses.

The liorary has recelved a subsidy allocation o the value of F26,428 in the fiscal year 2022 2027 that depicts a slight
increase of 6.75% Incompari=on o 20212022 where we received 25578 When this budget allocation s further
raviewsd, SALE has been dwindling between €2 % and 7 % In cormparison to B2% 555 allocated to the likrarny in the
year 2019- 2320 This funding allocation data s submitted o the Board 1o jet them understand the rationale behind
our recomrmendations SAL B's financal commitrments. With refarence o additional incorme in thie form of donations,
the library has managed to secure cash danations from wvarious committad donors Josie Wood Trust - B4071,000,

Botha - RLAEG1L 41698 and others to the value of RE5.000.

The axpansicn of servicesona national level i= dependent onthe financial supgort by the DSAC, The current fimancial
support by the Departiment is appreciated but is not allewing the brary to expand the National role as required by
the library Act The Board urges the Depariment toassess its role in supporting the library to honowr its mandate
and ta reach rmore bling and visually impaired people of South Africa. The Beard issupporting Library Management
in all its effaris to achieve itz obectives, The relationship between the Board and Library Managemeant is positive
and ocpen. The greatest asset of the library is the staff of the library. The Boarg appreciated the positive labour
refations that exist and notes with appreciation the healthy working relationship between management and the
staff of the library. Tho outcome of this is the positive parformanoo results achieved by the libtary in the past fimancial
year. The Board k= committed to ensure that this productive working environment is strengthened and te guide
management to sustain the positive working relationships 1o benefit the blind and visually immzaired memibers of

the Hbrary.
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SALS = currently Increasing its online collection on audio collection that will previde reading materials for its users
at nocostand provide the onling audio newspapers and perodicals: Access 1o informationand knowledge has never
been mare critical than in the present infarfmation age. Those who lack access to essertial information are excluded
fram participating actively in social, pofitical, and economic activibes. The visually impaired, have been marginalizec
Tor oo long because of the dearth of acoessible materiaks. Therefare, SAL B jn collaboration with other stalieholders
i standing up toits maral respansibility Tn ensuring -an nclushe and equitabke library and informmation services to
the visually impaired.

Mr Xolisa Yekani
Chairperson of the Board of the South African Library for the Blind
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4.CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S OVERVIEW

&

By the brany continuing o execute its Strategic Plan 2020.2
vd guantitative strategic imperativos infused into LI--_- b

its 24 sot strategic objectives; 100% of those were achiaved. Decpite the eous o

achievements (o the dedicaton and commitrment of 541 B staff and volunteers. No

limited staff and towards

hECaming unceramoniowsly vacant, through ¢

The year 20322023 was charactor

rrixture of both gualitati

withstanding operating
Two exgcutive positio

dication of the

exicting fibrary management tearn and voluniesrs the library

Irar to receive undualified audit.

Revernue of -R41, 331 with Operating costs o

surpius of 7502 was recordad for the financial y
The surplus costs are pregominantly due o the nature of

| o

ffving preduction costs as capital expenditure as well as
unalignment of the conditional grant allecation by Provincial
filrari

to our annual planning procoszec

The library has received a subsidy allocation 1o the value of
BF26,428 in the fiscal year 2022 sfight incroass
of &.75% in companson o 2021- 2022 where we received RZ5578
When thes budget allocation is further reviewed. SALB has been
dwindling botween &2 % and 7 % In comparisan o F
ta the l|ibrary in the year 2019/2020, Thi= funding

2023, fhat depicts3

allocat

ammendations SALB'S

subimitted to the Bodrd to lot them understand the rationale behing aur red
financial cormmitments. With re
socure cach donations from various commitied donors Josie Wood - R401,000, Botha - FlL4EL41698. and others to

allocation data

rafee to additional income in the form of donations, the library has managed to

the value of BG5,000
With reference o resource provision the librany managed to add on its stock 1,014 book tithes with 1271 of thos
igenous languages whilst braille produced 493 braiflle manuscriptswith 70 of these also inindigenous languages,
272 audio books, 330 custamized with 57 in indigenous languages ck was development
af 272 tactile boolks with braille exarminations also asseszed by the Braille and the Standards

registered 490 members and increased the SALB me ership from THa3 to 76

SE N

A to the library -

The fibrary also

Ewehilst

also establishing 10 mini libraries and circulated to members £3 905 books, despite the challenges experienced
through postal services

Towards the beginning af the third guarter the new Board members we

FEEA

o appainted and
Financial Officer and Chief

Board appolntrment, the two Executive Offic
appointed by the Board, Whilst the library was looking forward te organisational stability, the accountant

transttion

sabbatical leave
orgarnisation especially taking into

2N I

2 O

was Tallowed by the Senior Manager: Human Besources taking :
Faf o
leration the timing and the auditing reguiremants. The library, through these developrients took bawo steps

backwards as the library management operated in a very constrained environment cansidering limited staff and

| quite a bearing towards the suryiv

tho demands for audit and compliance.

In contrast, the library remained cormemitted and loyal in terms forging new partnesships whist also strengthoeni g
the existing omes. Building on last _r-'-' "n negotiations e new MOUs were signed bebween SALB and t
Cepartment of Basic Education whils h Gegarvrment of Higher Education: and
Traming - Further Education and Traming and Continuing Ecucation and Training divisions. There are anticipated
POSITe SO Ot 1 MESE DarTnae Secm o undersianc a need I sgme o
expect SALB to do art o ngthen the establishment and stabifity of mini librarie

further negotiated for the review of rl".t' provincial fiorany conditional grant allocation amount, so as the agreerment

o

he initiatives, they

the library

i thern. i an ef

signed to at least align with the peried the grant is allecsted to thern by DSAC: The<e deliberations

resufts as rmost of the provinces are now signing & thres-year

inly enakle the library to appoint Mini Library Cocrdinators on

have somewhat yieldes

Mernorandum of Understanding. This drive will ce

positions with job cacurity as a thesa-year contra
upgrade the staff qualifications and two of the staff members gradoated. one in B.COM H
and the othera Pos

study programimes, one in a Master's degree in Librany and: Information S

s better than one year. The library continued with a drive to
onors inHuman Becouw

roG

Graguate Diplorma In- Supply Chain Management There are staff membersanrolled in othar

w8 Post Graduate Diplona
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Library and Information Science whilst the other is enrclled for an MBA. All the gualification studies and courses
rrenitioned woere furnded by the SA1 B Study Assistance fund Two other staff rmembers enralled for an international
conference and will be presanting a papor 8t the World Congress for Library and Information Scienca in Metherlands

There are a series of Donors including the SALE main donors (Josie Wood Trust and Botha Estate)] that rermailned
leyal and cansistent in ensuring the lrary manages to fulfil its mandate. it is through such fimancial Injection that
the library website will be upgraded with technological advanced

features such as OPM integrated to the platforin for an improved user expenence. Whilst the library continues its
Ernvay Connect distribution drive, with partnerships with SABC Radics and Optirnization of our Social Media Space
cuch ac Facebook this drive will derive maximurm benefits when it comes to membership increase.

The SALB k= proud of what has been achieved overthis pgast financial vear, notwithstanding the staff inadequacy:,
through the Board suppart the library managed to optinnise s existing staff to il the gaps as well &= to dovelops the
ctaff. Although the ibrary management and staff oporated on a very constrained environment dua to the building
renovations a number of s1aff did manage to enjoy the fruits of becoming the first temporal inhabitants of the new
building. With a series of the ugcorming developmeanis aimed at claining a user centric approach on what the library
does, there ane exciting upcorming new revelations when it comes 1o space optimsation and wuse by the local blind
users, We are looking Torward to becoming tho intellectual engagement space all libraries are =2t to b,

Dr Pateka Ntshuntshe-Matshaya
CED for South African Library for the Blind (SALB)

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND




S5.STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:

e Allinformation and amountsdisclosed in the annual report is consistent with the
annusal financial statements audited by the Auditocr Ceneral South Africa (AGSA).

« Theannual report is complete, accurate and is free fram any omissions.

¢ The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the
annual report as issued by MNaticnal Treasurny.

» The Annual Financial Staterments (Part E) have been prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards applicable to the public.entity.

s The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual
financial statements and for the judgements made in this information.

» The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a
system of internal control has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as
to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human
rescurces information and the annual financial statements.

« The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the
annual financial statements.

# In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance
information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the
public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2023

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive Officer Mame: Chairperson of the Board
Dr Pateka NMtshuntshe-Matshaya Mr Xaolisa Yekani
Date: 31 July 2023 Date: 31 July 2023
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

61VISION

The South African Library for the blind
creates accessible reading opportunities
for blind and visually impaired people.

62 MISSION

The South African Library for the Blind renders a library
and information service to blind and print-handicapped
readers through the production of accessible South Afri-
can reading material in development of a comprehensive
library collection and rendering of advisory services to
promote access to information.

63 VALUES

The focus of the South African Library for the Blind is to make a difference and add
value to the lives of print disabled people. To make this possible, all our activities are
guided by the following values:

TRUST RESPECT TEAMWORK

We base our work- We respect We work togeth-
ing relationship on people, time and er as a dedicated
honesty and integ- property equally. and loyal team.

rity.

POSITIVE ATTITUDE COMMUNICATION DEVELOPMENT
We actively support
staff and infrastruc-
ture development
to promote individ-
ual and organisa-
tional growth

We approach every- We communicate

thing in an enthusi- in a responsive,

astic and construc- clear and appro-
tive manner. priate manner.




7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The South African Library for the Blind iz recognised in Schedule 24 of The Public Finance Managemant Act [Act ] of
1094 as a national public entity.

7.1 Constitutional Mandates

The South Afncan Library for the Biind's mandate & subject to and in accordance with the South African Constitution
and the South Africa Library for the Blind Act 91 oF 1900 It & legally committed to the values upon which the
demacratic South African state is foundea and in particular to these of eguality, human dignity, the adgvancement of
human rights and froedoms, non-racialism, non-sexism, accountabllity and derpocracy. Inaddition, itstrives to rmake
a contribution (o Africa by being an available recource of advice and expertice on llbrary rmatters relating to blind and
print-handicapped readers,

In support of the above, the South African Library for Blind Act 91 of 1998 mandates the library to:

sproduce documents In special rediums such as braille and audlo formats for use by it readers;
sdevelop standarcs for the producton of cuch documents:

sresearch production methods and technology in the appropniate fields; and

sacquire and disserninate the technology required for blind and print-handicapped readers té read.

This mandate cammits the library to:

v maintain the guality of its library and book production services through appropriate resources,

= gpand it products and services to people wham have print disability,

» gxpand its colfection of reading material and provide acceess (O

v gustain sensithvity for the reading needs of i constituency,

= research applicable technology and braille codes for potential application,

» dewvelop and presarve its human resource ckilic baco,

* mainiain and develop good relations with its readers, suppliers, funders, the State and publishers, and
= expand itz rmarketing and fundraising pregram.

The library serves a very particular constituency and, in this regard,

. it is socially committed tostrive, by its own efforts and in co-oparation with other role- players.on International
Mational and Local level, for thie rersoval, as far as possible, of barriers to information and
. to provide a quality service to meet as fully as practicablke, the information needs of all Sowuth Africans who are

blind and print handicapped.

»Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 [as amended]:

The SALS is committed 1o comply fully with the provisaons of the Public Finance Managerment Act and Treasury
regulations. An anga wihere the library stitl falls short of what the Act reguines relates to a fully operational Supply
Chaln Managerment framework. The fibrary |= striving towards achieving thiz objective, In addition, the fibrarys
financial policies are regularly reviewed inorder to ensure cantinued alignment with the provisions of the Public
Finance Mamagerment Act and the Treasury Regulations. The hibrary has a fully operational internal audit
ctructure in placa.

*Employment Equity Act, No. 55 of 1998 (as amended):

The SALB ag a Public Entity canforms o the reguiremenis of the Employiment Eguity Act. In the sense that
SALE has an Emplayment Equity Mamaoer, and all employment equity related matters are comrmunicated with
all staff, both unionised and non-unicnised. An Employrment Equity report for the SALB s submitted online to
the Departrment of Labour every vear, as reqguired by Legislation Bocause the Library employs fower than 150
emplovees, we are regarded as a small organization in terme of tha Act.
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Skills Development Act, No. 97 of 1998 (as amended]:

The Management of the SALB places a high value on the skills doevelopment of it staff. The Skills Developrnent
Act reguires dosignated armployers to submit formal Skills Development Mans on an annual basic to the
relevant SETA {ETDE SETAL The SALB will ensune that it cornplies with the requiroments of the Act

Protection of Personal Information Act (POPILA)

In terms of the POPI Act, the SA Library for the Blind's CEC was appointed as Chief Information Officer for the
SALE and registered with the relevant bodies: Training and development in this regard will be arranged in order

1o appoint maore Deputy Infarmation Officers to assist Inassuring the SALE complies to the reguirernenis of this
ALCT.

Promotion of Access to Information Act, No. 2 of 2000 (as amended):

The fibrary has a PALA Manual 2vailable in English, Afrikaans and isidhosa. These Manuals will be updated in
due course as tiaining of =& in this regard = undertaken. Becent staff changes impacted on the ayailability
of knowledgeable personnel in this regard, which will be addressed as a priority.

Ceeupational Health & Safety Act, No 85. of 12993 (as amended):

The library has a Health & Safety Committes in place which operates in compliance with the Act Freguent
reports are submitted, and meeungs conductad. Applicable staff received First Aid training and emergency
evacuation drills are conducted an a ragular basis
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8. ORCANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
DEPARTMENT OF SPORT, ARTS AND CULTURE

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
SA LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND BOARD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DFRICER
Pateka Nushuntshe-Matshaya

CHIEF AINANCIAL OFFRCER EXECUTIVE'S OFFICE ASSISTANT
Mr Phiwe Mmyatheh Ms Lungiswa Nomiayi

SNt MANAGER: UBRARY & INFORMATION SERVICES
Ms Linda Mealeka

SNR MANAGER: PRODUCTION & STANDARDS
Ms Pumia Mahanj@na

SHR MANAGER: INFORMATION
COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY
Va@ant

HEAD: HUMAN RESOURCES
Neels de Lange
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1. AUDITORS REPORT PRE-DETERMINE OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonabie assurance n the form of an audit conclusion, The audit conclusion on the parformance against
predetermined objectives iz included in the report to ranagement, with material indinos being reported under
the Preadetermined Objectives heading in the Bepart on other legal and regulatory reguirernents section of the
auditors report. Refer to page 5% of the Report of the Auditers Report, published as Part E: Fimancial Information

2. OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

The SALB ocperates under Programme & of the activities of the Department of Sport, Arts & Culture, Le. o facilitaie
full amd apen access to archival and information resources of South Africa

In the SALE=s caze these activities are focused on the blind and visually impaired citizens of South
Africa, The objectives of the library therefore are in suppert of the Department of Sport, Arte & Culiure’s
objective to guide, sustaln and develop Library ared  information resources of South Africa so that good
governance i supported, sodicceconomic developrnent s sustained and citizens are empowerad through full
and open access to these resources There are, howewer, a number of challenges facing blind and visually
impaired . people when it comes 1o access o information resgurces. These challenges influence the SALE in
exgcuting lts core mandate and the role it plays on a broader sccial level As part of strategic resource
planning the likrary isfaced by the following challenge=s

= Scarce skilks

Organisational structure

« Building constraini=

s Connectivity

- Naticnal furding priority

- Exponsive and imported technology

+ Target markel expansion

« Leqal compliapce funding needs

~Copyriaht and Intemational access 1o reading rmaterial

In terrm= of apportunities the library = the only ane of its kind not only in South Africa but alzo on the African
Continent Although there arfe scarce skills in audlo and Braille preduction the lbrary has well-trained <taff to
produce accessible reading rmaterial for blind and visually imipaired peopla. The ibrary’s contant is digitised which
makes it pasy 1o distribute material nationally and internationally. The library plays an impartant role incollaboration
with international organsations such as the World Intellectual Property Organisation toaddress the lack of sharing
digital book files across internationat borders, The library is also a member of the Internaticnal Federation of Litrany
Aszociations where we share and exchange knowledge about Library service delivery 1o our unigue market. The
library has.added a third reading format o s production ling, Le., tactile booke for childrern. This contributes 1o
literacy and the love for reading with children Collaboration with Provincial Library Authgrities contributed to the
ectablishrent of Digital Library Serdce Poinks in various public libraries Expanding the membership base of the
Library thraugh this Mini-Library Praject is crucial to réach as rmany members a5 possible.

The Mzanzi Golden Econormy of DSAC provides additional opportunities for the SALBspecifically in skill developrment
and employment Durnng the year under review, the appointrment of an Intern was renewed Tor the full financial
year as part of the programme to train and develop persons |0 African language Braifle not native 1o Eastern Cape
Thiz is to work towards increasing our collection of braille rmaterial in all languages in South Africa

SOUITH AFRIICAM LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2022/2023F



ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

The Library is a Matonal Institution with verny unigue Tunctions as the only Library Tor the Blind Inthe country and on
the African continent. The Library ks therefore fully depandent on itself in terms of working out its arganisational
challenges In terms of audio and braifle book production, training of staif in these disciplines and obtaining and
rraking available the necescary resgurces to render services and products.

The Board mneenbers are (M. Yekani ¥ Chairperson of the Board), Ms Kganedi M [Deputy Chairperson), M, Mr-
Buthelezi M, M=, Maraka D, Or Mphidi H, M2 Dubazana FK, M. Govender E M. Maboe B, Ms and M= Mosala TH. The
Annual Perfarmance Plan of the South African Libeary for the Blind for 2022/2023 financial vear was approved by the
board during end of January 2023,

The library places a highvalue on the implementation of a comprehensive training and developmant plan to expand
and improve the skills of Librany staff and the volunteors of the librany

& project has been registered with the Department of Public Works toredesign the librany building to accommodate
its rmedium and long-term space needs,

The fibrary's functions are in support of the Vision and Mizsion of the Dapartrnent of Sport Arts and Culture. Thraugh
tha production and distribution of accossible media to blind and visually impaired people of In South Africa this
target group becomes part of social cohesion. nation-building, sharing in the aft and culture of South Africa and ac
wiall gz its languages The arganisaticnal environmment = imited dua not the emall bot impartant market served but
the challenges faced by the rnarket are huge in tenms of accessibility to reading material.

Mationally
The core: performance of the library is guided but not limited to the broad goaks and objoctives of the Departrmant

of Sport Arts and Culture with specific referenca to:
= Apcecc to information through continued production of accessible reading material and to participate with

International Organisations to allow the free exchange of book files betwesn countries.

. Rewvitalising the public Ebranes of South Afnica through the establishrent of Digital Mind Library sendos points
in public librares of all the provinces in South Africa.

. Promotion of Linguistic: Diversity through the production of accessible reading material in all the official
languages of South Africa a= well as tools i apphyving nternational rules and standards N developing training
maternal in those languages

In addition, the Library will consider various options to provide Internet access for owr members 1o allow access to
electronic accezsible services, The Library will increase its visibility and collaborate with various organisations o
attract mare mambers,

The continuoushy growing financial and other resource dermands of the annual audits will Be raised and discussed
with the Board and the Office of the Auditor-General in an effort to fingd a solution to the challenge.

Africa

Thee library will identify opportunities to promote the work done by the Library in Africa. Wie will purswse opportunities
to form partnerships with orgamisations In counines with established infrastructure to render Library Services or
general services o blind and visually Impaired people. This will be done with the assistance of strategic partners,
raationally and internationally.

Internationally

The library is a member of the Intermaticnal Federation of Library Association Section for Libraries serving Pecple
with Print Disabilities. The library is the founding memibxer of the Accessible Book Comsortium [ABC) under the
auspices of the World Intelfectual Property Organisation (WIPO) which s one of the specialised agencies of the
United Mations. The Library is an active mamber of the ABC in tenmns of the upleading and downloading accescible
for all intermational members of the service. SALEB Members enjoy the benefits of aver 355, O¥) titles accessibie free
frorm our catalogues: The management i association with other stakeholders such as the National Council. for
Library ard Information Services continues to lobby the South African Government, Lo, the Departrment of Trade
and Industry 1o ratify the Marrakesh Treaty. Once the Treaty is ratified it will make it possible to.obtain access tatitles
internationally, offering a broadar choice for the reglstered libeary member.
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2.3 KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE
CHANGES

Mo Legistative ar Policy changes wene instituted dunng the reporting penod that affected the work of the library

2.4 STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

The strategic goal of the fibrary is 1o render & Mational Library Service to blind and visually impaired people. This
has been achieved during this reporting penod as indicated in the Tollowing section where the performance of
the various sections of the library is explainec. The liorary achieved 100% out of the total of 26 obiectives set for

the year

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/
ACTIVITY/OBJECTIVES - STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Institutional Programme Performance Information

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal: Rendering a naticnal fbrary and informaticn service 1o blind and
print-handicapped roadors.

Goal statement: The South African Library Tor the Blind (SALE or “the Library”] renders a National Library
and Inforrmation Service through registering blind and print-handicapped  readers/members, production
and collection rmarmagenment for user sepvicos,

Institutional Performance Information

Impact Statament: To provide effective and efficient Financial, Human Resource and Information  and

Cormmurnication Technology (ICT)  administration and cofporate  governance: by being fain
accountable responsible, and transparent

SOFUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2522/20X2F E



PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Sub-programme: Finance, Human Resource and ICT support services

Goal To render administrative and support sarvices 1o the SALB Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the
managerment team of the library.

Purpose: This programmee is primarily responsible for providing support to the SALE Board, the Chiel Executive
COfficer (CEQ) and the Management team of the library

The programine is responsible for recording, reporting and providing relevant rmanagement inforrmation requirned
b legislation to the Board and the CED refating to Financial, Hurnan Resource and ICT complanoe matters.

1.1 Finance Management
Strategic objectives, perforrmance indicators planmed targets and actual achisvermants
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1.3 Information and Communication Technolegy and support services

Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned targets-and actual achievemeants

3 (L ] Meaita s & i 7 & ® = & = Le=t X D= |
§ L " =T s [Fan - I v ; 1
IT; L T 1 L Ty LT
i Lra ICT kb [a [= e}
L i i -I
i nd . o
o ] Al ey
[ Lhy farede
{rats= ol
LF I
LI+ f = 3l } F B Lindy & 3 Pliaril o 4 PliariL K i i
ygk = Repart
] & I Tieag i -
il I T i i rritedd
| = c Lati e
f Lio f Lio
1% e N, } (] 2 [ ] (! _ [ ] (! ¥ 1 [ [
L& L arl L y L e
1kt ot i [ = 4
1 B 1 . 1 1 ] 1 ]
4 i et cf 1 cf
e | |
1 x| x|

Notes:

1. Whare the Audited Actual Performance I ing

od ac NAA It means that the indicator was not part of that

specific yearsannual FParfformance Plan-and thus no baseling exists

Z z-menthly andfor guarterly reports 1o the Executive Management [llustrates the progress achi
Ling the objectives.
3 Under objective 122,12 monthly reports on the preparation of playback devices were submitted and reported that

were prepared for the

orte on serviced, repaired, or replaced playback devices wene subritted. For

ek, repained, of repEced

33, 12 monthly reg

209 players were either se




PROGRAMME 2: BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Sub-programme 2.1: Library and Information Services

impact Statement To ensure senvice defivery toall registered ibrarny membors of the South African Library of the
Blind

Goal To dewelop a balanced collecticn of reading material as well as render and expand library and Information
sarvices To blind and print-handicapped readors.

Purpose/Functions
This programme is respansible for

] Estahblish, manage and maintain the integrated electronic Library Managaement System that seamlessly
correlates all hbrary functions

. Maintaln the records of the mermbers of the Libeany,

- lesue and receive reading material and reading devices tothe rmembars of the Library as well as mini-libraries.

= Ensure guality control of Ebrary collection and manage the distribution supply chain of Ebrary records theowgh

our distribution chain

Doy

Administer copyright managerment matters

op the colection of the Library through selection, acqguisitions and cataloguing

Pramote infarmation access of librarny resources.

Adrrinister inter-ibrary loans from international suppliers

Stategic olj

ctives, parformance indicators planmed targets and actual achievements
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Motes:

bl

Where the Audi

specific

/Tt means that the Tndic:

Actual Performance iz Indicated as

or was not part of that

ears Annual Performance Plan and thus no be e exists

The rmonthly andfor guarterly repons o the Executive Manasgemeant illustiates the progress achileved in meot g
the objectives

Under objective 211, monthly reports on the nurnbsr of titles catalogued were submitted. For the year 1014 titles

wiere catalogued

Under chrective 21.2, out of the 1,014 titles that were catalogued (refer note above), 121
Under objective 213 12 monthly report
year, 490 new membe

wiere indigenous tithes
on the number of membershilp registrations were submitted. For the

S WwWere reqQistenadc

Under abjective 214, 12 moenthly reporis frarm the seni

submitted. For the yvear, 10 naw mini-librarie

or coordinator of rmini-library service points were

5 were established,
Under objective 216, 12 rmanthly raports on books circulated were submitted. For the yvear 43 905 books wore
circulated:

Under objective 218, correspondence with Global Rainbow Foundation in Mauritius took place and a report

submitted

ru
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.2: BRAILLE PRODUCTION

Impact Statement: Producing Braille conte
and print-handicapped readers of the SALR.

of South Afnica’s Oificial Languages for the banefit of blind

Gaal: To produce guality brallle matenal

Purpose/Function: The core function of Braille Production is to produce high guality, error-free braille maternial
for pecple and library members
braillists

sho are visually impabkred. This s achieved through the services of highly skilled

& and aciual achnievanients

Mo Chitoonime | Dutpuk Outeome | Audibed Audited Piarursed
Indicator Actual Actueal Armusal
Performan | Performan | Target

[= ] L=
aonfaoE | A0

Notes:

1 Where the Audited] Actual Peiforrmance is indicated as N/A It means that the indicator was not part of that

cpacific vear's Annual Performance Plan and thus no baseline exists.

2 The monthly report to the Executive Management illustrates: the progress achived in meaeting the
stics, wherever applicable
A Under objective 22 3, out of the 493 braille titles produced and custorny

tives The submitted reports will indicate guantitative stat

ised {indicator 223 and 2.2 2], 35 weare

indigenous language titles
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Sub-programme 2.3: Audio Production

rrnpal:t Staterment Producing audio/digital content inall T o

i bling

and print-ha

ndicapped readers

of SALE.

Soukh Africa’s s

Official Languagesfor the benofit

ctandards

Gaal To produce guality audio reading rmaterial bxsed on international accecsibility <

reading maternal in accessible
[ {=) and audio

PurposefFfunction: Audio Production is respensible for producing audio
farenats. Fart of this responsibility s 1o
farrnats to anhance the reading expenonce of blind and print-hardicapped re

incorporate the use of speciafized technology, = M=

Strategic objectives, paerformance indicators planned targets achievemenis

Fomedustc ir

x33 L5 o o . 151
I3 HiA 35 L 53 a3

Notas:

of that

1 Winere the Audited Actual Performmance isingicated as MO I dicator was not part o
specificyear's Annual Pefdormance Blan and thus no baseline exists
The rr.r:r*.'.r‘.I-Jl reports to the Executive Management illustrates r| e progress achieved in meeting the
X s Thae subsenitted repors .x||I 'r‘.l_iin:.'_-ul'.-;- -;'.u_ir‘u'lt = EL =, --.!ILTI_ vor applicable.
3 Under LLJLLLI e 253, out.of th o (indicator
nous language tit
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3land 232 57
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.4 BRAILLE ADVISORY AND STANDARDS

Impact Staterment Increased awareness and education in braille and tactile standards in g

rartnarship with key

Gaal: To develop and standardise braille and to produce tactile books a
Purpose/Function The Library's
adkditional func

Coldir

L
&
al
L

Wy T internaticnal standards,
slatutorny mandate goes beyvond the production . of braille. It encompassoes an
tion of standard setting, including the followl
ahjective

i tasks performed by this
< performance indicate

SeChon:
= planned targets and actual achievements

Hates:

Wheare the Audite
that sp

=p

ecific year's Annual

Performance Plan and thus no baseline exists
guarierly andy or annual reports to the Execut
rmesting the objactives. The =

g Actual Performance is indicated as MA, It means that the indi

Cal

oF Wias not part of
e Managerment iHu
ubrnitted reports will iIndicate

trates

the progress ach
duantitative statistics

2ed 1IN
whizraver applicable,
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PROGRAMME 3: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Sub-programme 3.1: Marketing and Promotion

Impact Statement To prormiote the work and activities of the library through appropriate rmarketing
communicatian channels.

Goal Toreach out to Likrary rnermbers, the public at large and potential funders 1o highlight the warlcof the SALB

Purpose/Function: Marketing and promoting the librarys products and sendces

Lrrategic objectives, performance indicators planned targets and actual achievemnents

Hotes:

Whiare the Audited Actual Perforrmance s indicatad as N/, It means that the indicator was not part of
that specific wear's Annual Performance Plan and thus no baseline exists.

The quartery reports to the Executive Management ilfustrate the progress achigved in mesting the
objectives. The submitted reports will indicate quantitative statistics, wharever applicabte.

X
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4, INSTITUTIONAL RESPONSE TO THE COVID-12 PANDEMIC COMBINED
WITH BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

The COVID-12 pandemic had a minimal impact daring the 202242023 fimancial year.

During the year 20212022 a major building and renovations project commenced at tho SALB. This resulted in the
Tull courtyard area of the library having been nanded over (o the bullding contractors to commence with the worl
Anentire flank of offices had to be vacated for construction work 1o take place,

Given that SALB now had even less office
and alternating-work-week arrangemenis

space Lo accommuodate all staff. a combination of working -fram-home
had to be implermented at the office

The fibrary's management has ensured that the neceszary health and zafety precautions remained in place ang
that any major health and safety risks were mitigated

Despite best efforts, | there were times when services were interrupted to ensure decentarmination protocols could
e followed and - Such instances wore carefully controlied and monitored.

I 20292022 [ 133 000 wac spant on COVID-1S related experses for own inctitutional uses and in the 2022/202%
financial year B 24 250.00 was spent

LINKING PERFORMAMCE WITH BUDCETS

20N/2022
Programme/Activity/objective Budget Actual
Expenditure
R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R'000 R ‘000 R ‘00D
Programme 1 - Administration 28, 298 26 240 2 068 37,300 27,554 7.BE4
17, O30 1, [ 5,938 Wi, 982 12388 A.648
Programme Z-F S0 gy 204 300 19 260
Engagement
Total 45, B28 37,630 8,198 52,582 35,980 12,792

The table above is a brief sunmany of the budget and expenditure per programme, and mare detailed
inforrnation = contained in the Annual Financial Staternarnits including reasons far underspending.

REVENUE COLLECTION

The main sounce of revenue for the Library is the subsidy provided by the National Department of Sport. Arts and
Cufture [BSAC). The amount received Tor the 20022073 voar was P26.428 000, which was budgeted Tor and fully
utilized. The other Iincome classification is cantained in the Statement of Financial Performance in the Annual
Fimarncial Staterments

Dr PHNM Nitshunshe- Matshaya Mr Xolisa Yekani
SALB CEO SALE Boaard Chairperson
Date: 31 July2023 Date: 31 July 2023

5.CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Mothing Lo report
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GOVERNANCE
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1. INTRODUCTION

The South African Library for the Blind governance processes comply with existing . corporate
gowvernance processes and systems All activities of the library are directed, controlled and can be
accounted Tor. In addition to the reguirements of the South African Library for the Blind Act 91 of 1998
carporate governance is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Managerment Act (PFMA)
and run in tandert Wwith the principles contained in the King's Report on Coerporate Covernancs whare
applicable. The library reportcs to Parliarment ance a year and moets with the Portfolio Committes whan
reuined.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

Mo Partfolio Commmittes mestings were scheduled during 20222023

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

The Managerment of the Library submitted four quarterly reporis to the Department of Arts & Culture as
redquined

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY/BOARD

The SALB Board is appointed in accordance with the South African Library for the Blind Act 91 of T998. The
Board is recponsible and accountable for the lilbcary’s performance and strategic direction

The role of the Board is as follows:

{a) Ta formulate the policiec of the Library Tor the Blind;

{b} To apprave the budget of the Library for the Blird;

[c} To aporove the iinancial statements of the Library for the Blind;

[d} Toadvise the Ministar with regard to matters with which the Library for the Blind is concerned; and
{e) To furnish the Minister with such Informmation as the Minister may reguire

Board Charter

The Board Charter was reviewed in March 2023 and will be reviewed every board term thereaftar. The
Beard aligns its legal responsibilities with the Charter apd cormiplies with all requirernents

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 202Z/7023 30




Composition of the Board
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REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS

As per note 21 (found in Part E) of the Annual Financial Statement

Board Term: 2023
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 R 000's
Board Fees 193
X Yekani (Chairperson) ]
M Kganedi (Deputy Chairperson) 25
M Buthelezi 45
E Ramaoka 13
FK Dubazana 17
M Mphidi 30
R Maboe 19
K Govender 5
S Meerputh 13
N Ravgee 4
TM Mosala 11




5. RISK MANAGEMENT

A Risk Management Policy = in place as confirmed by the Library's Internal Auditors. The strateqy is based an the
policy, Regular risk assecsmants are perfformed a5 roguired and verified by the Internal Auditoes and the Libranys
Audit Committee. The management toam of the library sorves as a Risk Management Commilttes which'is lod by the
Chief Financial Officer. The CRO and the CEC ara responsible for-addressing and mitigating dentified ricks. Al ricks
identified on an annual basis are addressed incsllaboration with the Audit Committes,

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Marnagement Team of the SALB functions as the Internal Control Unit. Monthly meetings are conductad. Issues
are raised with the Beard where applicable during their guarterly meetinos

7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The key activities and objectives of the internal audit are as follaws:

L Parforming an assecsment of the adeguacy and effectiveness of the risk management procecses;

L Analysing ard evaluating defirsed business processes and associated controls.

. Evaluating the offectivenaecs of cantrols over the reliability and integrity of cortain defined information for
managerment purposes, with particular emphasic on fimancial information;

. Ascertaining the level of compliance with policies, plans, procedures, laws and regulations apphicable 1o the
work undertaken;

*  Acsecsing the adequacy of controls to safeguard assots, including intangible assets apgplicable to the work
undertaken;

®  Aceeccing whether significant 1T and capital projects, strateqgic programs and plans are appropriataly
dacurnented, approved and implemented;

L Drawing attantion to any faillure by rmanagement to take remedial action with respect to contral weaknesses
identified and reported; and

. Asgict the Audit Commitiee in achiaving its objoctives by evaluating procesces.

The key activities and objectives of the audit committee are:

* Toowerses the internal audit

. Bearesponsibie for recommending the appointment

=  of the external auditor and 1o overses the external

. audit process;

*  Owercsee integrated reporting and should have regard 1o

= all factors and risks that rmay Impact on the integrity

= gof theintegrated report

*  Parform Risk management

=  Provide oversight on Infarmation Technology Governance;

. Provide géneral oversight and reparting of sustainability by reviewing the integrated report to ensure that
the inforrnaticn contained in it iz reliable and that it does not contradict the financial aspects of the repart;

. Cwersee the provision of assurance ovar sustainability issues, and

. Ethics, Compliance, and Whistloeblowing - be responsible for manitoring the ethical conduct of the

. Library, its executives and =enior officials; by RBeporting and Accountability --an independent robe with
accountability to the board.

A summary of the internal audit work gone £ provided in the report of the Audit Comrmittes Chair. Specify
summary of audit work done.

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The library complies with all applicable Laws and Regulations and is audited internally and extormally for
compliance.
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9. MINIMISING CONFICT OF INTEREST

The Beard and Management of the Library are aware of the potential conflict of Interest that may arize in
the supply chain managemant process. This = due ta the small staff compenent of the Library in senior
pasitions, Within this confinement delegations are carefully assigned in an effort to mindmize conflict of
intorest This rmatter was not raised during the recent Intermal of External Audits.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT

a. The SA Library for the Blind (SALB) i= a National Statutory Organisation and an Agency of the Department
of Sports, Arts and Culture.

. As employvess of the SA Library for the Blind, we embrace tha spirit of the Constituticn of the Republic of
South Africa and the Bill of Rights; as well as other Govarnment pelicies, regulations, and guiding
docunients.

. We value life and human dignity and stand firmiy opposed togender-based violence and the abuse of
waman and children.

The purpose of the Code of Conduct within the context of the SALB is to:

a. Record, and communicate in writing, a set of guidelines in forms of acceptable conduct and ethical
bobhaviour obsarvad by-allemplovees of the SALS;

b. Maintain a healthy and positive organizational cultune at the SALB;

& Encure the observance - by all s1aff of the SALE - of the Yision, Mission and Mandato of the SALB, the
SALB Yalues, s policies, procedure guidelines, standards, documents, etcs as wall as the broader
Covernmentabjectives and goals, including, but not limited to drives and initiatives airmed at eliminating
andior eradicating gander-based vialence and the abuse of woman and children

In Instances of weach of the SALR Code of Conduct by a staff rmember, an imvestigation will follow, and
disciplinary processes implemented as and where requined.

1. HEALTH AND SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Compliance:

The South African Library for the Blind complies with the OHS&E Act 85 of 1993, 0 the following manner: Health
and Safety Representatives Compliance according ta H&S act Every Institution/businessfentity, which emplaye
20 or more peaple, in a choploffice type environment must comply by having ONE representative for every 100
workers. ar part thereof,

Tho SALE had & Health and Safety Represantatives for just over 48 employees during the vear 2022- 2023,

First Ald:

Compliance according 1o.H&5 act One First Aider must be available during a shif. The SALR has 3 qualified First
Alders on their stalf complement’s Commitice

HAS Committee: The Representatives must have regular meetings to discuss OHAS |mwes This has been
changed in the new Act to a HAS cormmitiee mesting once every quarter, and that the minutes of thesse
meetings must row be signed by the CEO of the arganization The SALB conductad these meetings rogularly
when there were contractors on site. These will now take place once a guarter and the minutac signed by the
CEQ. Tha minutes of these meatings will be kept for a minimurm of 3years an fila.

Evacuation plans:

Evacuation procedures must b Inplace and personnel must be made aware of procedures. The SALB does have
a comprebensive evacuation plan. Due to the building renowations currently taking place at the library,
evacuation drills have not been held as not all regular exlt points are avallabke at present. SALB =taff are kept
inforrned of developrnents as the bullding procecs proceeds.

The library hac an Evac-Chair 1o ascict. whare relevant, people down a staircase. Training on how to use thic chair
o evacuate an injured staff member from the buillding in the event of an injury which prevents them from doing
=0 thamselves, was given 1o Serior Managers and the First

Aigers. The firg extinguishers in the library are serviced and checked annually by a registered company under
contract by NDPW. Proof of the wvisits can be seen on the service card of each fire extinguizher. The elevator in
the [orary is checked once a rmanth, by registered experts, alzo under contract by NDEW

Records of these monthly inspectians and the repairs that were reguired, it necessary, are notad on these
inspection docurmants, and are kept on Tilke. During periods of Isadshedding and while the building renovatione
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contract is underway, the SALB elevator is only used if goods need to be taken up w the first floar. it is not used
for personcs, as eloctrical faults or ficks: (surges) may cause the slevator to bacome stuck between floars.

12. COMPANY/BOARD SECRETARY

Mot applicable

13. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The core function.of the library, e, 10 render a library and information service to blind and print handicapped
people is g social responsibility service.

Services are rendered o any blind per=zon free of charge The library also proyides volunteer waork to mare than
50 narrators, proof readers, copy typists

and biafl lists across South Africa who assist thie Library to produce Audie arsd Brailbe reading matarial.
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14. Annexure B: Report of the Audit & Risk Committee

We are phleaced to present our report for the financial year ended 3] March 2023

Audit & Risk Committee Responsibility

The Audit & Risk Committes reports that it has complied with s responsibilities ansing from Section SHT{a) (i) of
the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 275 The Audit & Risk Commities alsoreports that it
has adopted appropriate formal termms of reference as its Audit & Pisk Commitee Charter, has regulated its affairs
in campliarce with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilitres a5 contained therein, except that we have
reot reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.

Audit & Risk Committee Members and Attendance at Meetings

I termme of the Audit & Risk Committee charter and Section 77(1(b) of the Public Finance Management Act, the
Audit & Rick Commitioe has met at leact twice in respoct of the financial vear. Details of the moetings were as Tollows:

s A van der Merwe Wir M Latif-Kader Mr H Harnett

Ciuai & Desigration HA:E:I{:\SI':JUFS HgT?j%HF} BAccd Lclf{,ﬂsﬁd“ Univ,
Raole Chairperson Member Member
it e e 01-Aug-2021
Iesting stendancs.

27 May 2022 i L v

30 May 2022 + o v

2 June 2022 v apology v

11 August 2002 v ALY v

16 Jaruary 2023 ¥ v v

The Effectiveness of Internal Contral

Cur reyview of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessmmenis conducted at the
South African Library Tor the Biind [SALB), revealed certain weaknesses which were then saised with SALB
management Hatings ranging from Low to High were assigned to each finding based on the impact of the
weakness (nintermal control and the threat of financial loss 1o the arganisation

The following Intarnal Audit reviews were completed during the year under review ovar the following areas:
» Annual Financial Staterments review
. Audit of Predetermined Objectives. review SP, APP and usefulness & reliability of reported information
. PaOPl Act Compliance review
. Design and Implementation of a Combined Assurance Plan
. Risk, Ethics and Fraud Mamagerrent review
* Governance review
. Rick Assocormant reviow
L Supply Chaln Managament review
. Review of Audit & Bick Cornmittes charter & Intarnal Audit charter
. Hurran Resource Management revies
. Financial & Control review
. Follow-up reviews on previous [ntermal Audit findings and AGSA Management Report findings raised fior
Fro2y202z

lesues identified weare net significant and others were of a housskeeping mature. All prior year findings were
adeduately addressed armd rosolved.

There were bwo instanoes of alleged financial misconduct by senior execotives reparted during the previous financial
yvear. The board of the SALE appointed a forensic auditor To investigate these matters and they have since bean
concluded. More information on the matter i available in the Annual Report
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The Audit & Pick Comrnittee, Imternal Audit and SALE managerment acknowledged that internal contrels intarms
of identification and eradication of financial misconduct nead te be mproved and a strategy s in the procecs of
being implemented to improve the relevant controle.

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Reports
The publle entity has reported guartarly to National Treasury as s required by the PEMA

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit & Bisk Carmimittee has reviewed the annual financial statements prepared by the public entity

Auditer's Report

The Audit & Bisk Committee has reviewsd the entity’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year
and we are satisfied that the matters have been adeguately reschwed,

The Audit & Ricsk Committes concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the - annual financial
staternents and isof the opinion that the audited annual fimancial statements be accepted anad read together with
the report- of the Auditor-General.

Poldor s
Anje van der Merwe CA[SA)
Chairperson of the Audit & Risk Committee The South African Library for the Blind 28 August 2023
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1. INTRODUCTION
The status of Human Resources at the SA Library for the Blind [Dverview)

The overview provided below depicts the status of Hurnan Besources at the South African Library for the Blind
{SALE) for the year in review. Below are soma key points:

1. Budget Allocation: The HF budaget iz divided into two parts - government subsidies allocated to SALR
annually and conditional grants from provingial librardes: These furnds are used for various purposes,
including hiring contract s1aff to manage mini libraries across nine provinces

2 Jab Creation: The mini library projects have resulted in job apportunities for blind and visually impaired
staft members, especially youth and women. These projects employed a total of 18 emplovees that
somewhat made a significant contribution to Sa1 B's workforce.

I,  Building Refurbishment The refurbishment of the liorary bullding led o a hybrid work micdel, with
sofe staff working remotely while others come te the office. This transition affected arganisational
workflows and efficioncioas even though implamented gradually.

4 Staff Recruitment and Resignations: During the period of April 2022 to March 2023, SALB recruited 18
ctaff members, including executive management, caontract =staff, and permanent saff. However, the
library also experionced staff resignations, including long:serving employees ke Mr. Johan Nel who
retired In Movember 2022

5. Emploeyment Equity: The ciganisation 5 committed o employrent eguity. it has focused on youth
internship programmes and have successiully placed 3 interns, placed in various departments withinthe
arganisation.

6. Additional Rasponsibifities: To addresc the gap created by staff exiting the organisation, axisting
managers have taken onadditional responsibilites

7. Staff Training: The library prioritizes staff training and spert 47,410 for forrmal qualifications
Additionally, staff memberc at the 259 mini ibraries have benefited fram trainings offered by provincial
libranes that contributes mainly to continuous learming.

B Educational Achievements: Sorme ermplovess have pursued highaer education, with two completed post
graduate degrees, ongoing rmasters, bachelor's-and short programmes in various fslds

Thic overview . provides valuable Insights into the HE and workforce dynamics at SALE, cshowcasing: its
commitment o0 job creation, equily, traming, and staff development It also highlights the organisation=
adaptabifity in respanse to changing work environments and thrive to create efforts to fll the staffing gaps

Human Resource Challenges

The year under reviesw much as SALS can pride itealil about doing more with less there have been so many
challenges that emianated from a series of issues that include bist not limited o the ones listed below:

1. Financial inadequacies: Due to funding limitations, the organisation iz struggling to make ends meet
wihen it cormes o alignment of staff to the organisational strategic goals. Thic has become a barrierthat
affects its ability to attract and retain professionally gualified staff. The impact of this challenge is
signrificant as jt led to a lengthy turn areund in the filling of vacant positions, with instances such as
candidatec’ resignation within thoe first fesw rnonths of job ascumption or decling of the job offer. There is
quite a bearing of this challenge to the organisational workflows, development of new cervices, and staff
rrvorale.

2.  Subsidy Allocation; The decline on the subsidy allocation is a root cause of all these challenges. The
library = forced to pay =alaries that are not competitive in the market, making it difficult to attract and
retain professional ctaff. SALE s exporiencing talent drain as gualified profescionals ond up seeking
bettar-paying opportunities elsewhers,

3. Lack of Salary Progression: Thie absence of performance bonuses and carear growth linked to calary
notches i a significant concorn for existing staff that lad to:

& Staff demothvation and there is a risk.of the current employees seaking job opportunitios
elsewhere 25 SALB has limited opportunities with no salary growth and career advancements:

&  |nability to retain and motivate high-performing staff
4 Salary Bargaining Process The absence of salary notches and a clear salary bargaining process has lod
to issues such as mistrust in refation to salary compensation and staff undersianding of the process. This
impacts employee satisfaction and potentially leads 1o disputes or dissatisfaction amaong staff,

Ima nutshell, the arganiisation is grappling with chalienges related to competitive compensation, lob attraction,
and carear developrnant opportunities, Addressing these priotitios £ essontial to ensute the crganisation can
attract and retain the qualified professionais needed o fulfil its mission effectively.
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Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce.

Workforoe planning and attracting/recruiting a skilled and capable workforce can be ezpecially challenging for
the South African Library for the Blind {SALB] given its gesgraphical lecation and financial constraints. Here are
ke strategies to be considerad:

1. Sattlement Benefit: Offoring a one-month settlement benefit has proven 1o be a positive step 1o help
newly appointed staff to secure accormmodation and essentials when they join the organsation. Thishas
baen a valuable incontive for potential ernployees, especially if the lecation presents challenges.

2. Competitive Salaries and Benefits: To attract and retain skilled professionals, SALE should - explore
options to make thajr salary packages more competitive. This might involye seeking additional funding
of rectructuring existing resourcec. Boanefits such as healthcare, retirernent plans, and profescienal
development opportunities can also make positions more attractive.

3. Addressing Living Conditions: SALE can work with local authorities and organisaticns to address the
challenges related to water, ekecrricity, and living conditions in Makhanda. |mproving the guality of life
for emplovees can positively impact retention.

4 Rewenue Generation and Funding Opportunities: Continue to pursue funding opportunities theaugh
proegrammes like President Employmeant Stimulus (PES) to expand services and improve the financial
situation, While effarts may not have been successful thus far, persistence in seeking funding = crucial
for the sustainability and growth of the organisation.

5  Dhversified Funding: Exploro varicus funding options and partnerships to support staff recruitment and
retention. This could frvelve seeking grants from government agencies, NGOs, or collaboarating with
other organications 'with similar ryissions.

6.  Re- Advertising Vacancies: He-advertising vacancies is a useful strategy to reach a broader pool of
applicants, especially from targeted groups. It allows SALE to continuoushy seek new talent and diversify
its wiorkforoe:

7. Remote Work and Flexible Arrangements: Given the challenges of the phyzical location, consider
offaring remote work opticns whore feasible This can espand the pool of potential candidates and make
positions more appealing.

B Invest in Training and Development Highlight cppertunities for staff growth and develaprmient. Even if
salaries are not competitive, the promice of skill enhancerment and career progression can attract and
retamn motivated professionals:

9.  Employee Referral Programmes. Encourage current employess o refer qualified candidates. This can
bean effective way to bring intalent who are farmiliar with the organisation’s mission and culture.

10, Community Engagement: Engage with the local community t© build goodwill and foster a sense of
belonging. This can improve the organisation's reputation and make it more attractive to potontial
employees.

I sumimary, SALE neadt a rnult-pronged- appreach to workforce planning and recruitimant, given its unigue
challenges. This should include addressing financial constraints, impraving living conditions, seeking funding
apporunities ard making the arganisation an attractive place to wark through competitive comipensation
packages and other incentives

Employee performance management

The South African Library for the Blind [SALB) has been successful in meeting its annual performance targets due
to the diligence and willingnoss of itsstaff, despite facing cevaral challenges.

Bolow aresome key points related te employes performancg management:

1. Acknowlsdgemant and Appreciation It & important to acknowledge ared appreciate the hard work
and dedication of staff in meeting perforrmance targets, Recognizing their efforts can boost morake ard
motivation

2 Challenging Circumstances: Mention of the challenging circumstances, such as the building and
refurbishment. project, the previcus years executive staff incident, and econormic factors, show an
understanding of the challenges that employecs have faced. Acknawledaging these challenges is a
positive sten,

3. Financial Constraints: The statement atso highlights budgetary issues that constrain the ability to
fimancially cormmpensate high-performing employges. Thi=s = an Immportant aspect of performance
management as employees often ook for rewargs and recognition for their efforte

4, Phase-out of Financlal Rewards: The mention of the phase out of financial rewards for perforrmance
excoeding expectations, as part of adherence to cost-containenent polictes indicates that the
organisation = making €fforts to manage s budget effectivaly, Howewvar, it is essential o consider
altermative ways to reward and motivate high-perforrming ernployees in the absence of financial rewards
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In sumimiary, while budget constraints can imit the abifity to provide financial réwards for high performance, there
are alternative ways 10 manage and motivaie employees effectivaly, SALB should focus ona combination of non:
fimancial recognition; pefformance development plans, regular feedback and fostering an engaging work
ermvironrnent to continue to achigwe its perforrmance targets.

Employee wellness programmes

Implermenting employee wellness programimes is essential for the overall health and productivity of an
organisation's workforce. The information provided indicates that SALB hac taken ctepe to addrocs staff health
and wellness issues by allocating funding for wellness initiatives. Here are some key points related to this initiative:

1. Deferred Wellness Initiatives: The fact that staff health and weliness issues were deferred for years
suggests that the organisation might hayve faced budgetary constrainte ar other griorities. However,
recognizing the impartance of employes wellness is a pocitive ctop.

2. Source of Funding: The funding for wellness initiatives was generated from the interest acorued due to
delays in replacing key potitions, specifically the Chief Executive Officer arnd Chief Financial Officer roles.
This demonstrates creative Dudgeting and esource allocation.

3. Allocation of Funds: The allocation of furids into two portions, with 50% going toward a one-time staff
appreciation payrment and the other 50% dedicated to ctaff wellness indtiatives, shows a balanced
approach, itackoowledges the importance of both recognizing emplovees efforts and investing in their
wall-being.

& Staff Appreciation: Providing a one-time financial appreciation to staff can boost morale and motivation.

It recognises their contributions and dedication 1o the organisation; which can lead 1o increased b

satisfaction.

5  Staff Wellness Initiatives: Investing in staff wellness initiatives is cruciai for promioting physical and
mental health amongst employees. These initiatives can include activities such as fitness programmes,
mental health support. stréss managenent workshops, and access to healthcare resources,

6 Measuring Impact: | is essential for SALB o establish ways to measune the impact of these wellness
initiatives. Thiz could Invelye gathering feedback from employees, tracking absenteeism, or monitaring
improvarnents inoverall haalth and well-baing.

7.  Long-term Commitment: Employec wellness should not be a onetime effort. SALS should consider
making these prograrmmies a recurring part of their arganisational culture to ensure sustained benefits

8 Communication: Cloar communication abeout the weiinoss initiatives and their benefits iE vital
Emplayoes should be nformed about the available resources and encowraged 1o take advantage of
tham.

Iy suriirmnary, the allocavon of funding for ermplovee wellness initiatives, coupled with a staff appreciation
cormponent, reflects a positive cormmitment by SALB to the well-being of its employess. To make the most of
thesae initiativas, it s important to ensure that they are well-inmplemented, sustained over time, and effectively
cormmnunicated to all staff moembers. Thiscan contribute ta a healthier, more motivated, ard producthe workdores.

Policy Davelopments

The informmation provided undetscores the importance of having a comproehenslve set of policies and procedures
In place at <Al B to govern various aspects of the organization, including ermployes rights, bahaviour, ang
oparations.

Below ara some key points refated 1o policy developments at SALE;

1. Policy Portfolio: SAFRE mairmains a substantial portfiolio of formal pelicies, manuals, codes, and plans
totalling around 16 policies-and 29 other relevant decurnents This demonstrates a commitment to
ensuring that the organisation's operations are governed by well-defined rules and guikdelines.

2.  Periodic Review and Update: The organisation recognises the irmportance of keaping those policies and
documents current and in line with ndustry normes and standards. Periodic reviews and updates are
carried out as needed This'e a good practice to ensure that policies remain relevant and effective.

I, Consultative Process: Any revisions toofficial policies involve a consultative procedurs, This means that
employess have a role in the palicy development and revision process, which can help to encure that
policiec are fair and practical.

4, Board Approval or Ratification: Changes require board approval or ratification This adds an additional
layer of oversight to ensure that policies align with the arganisation’s mission and values

5 Focus on Ethics and Values: Recent incidents, particufarly those invelving sanior officials, have
highlighted the mportance of staff members being well versed In and adherent to SALB's palicies,
especially those related to othics, values, fraud prevention, and conseduence ranadgernent. Thic
indicates a commitmment o upholding ethical standards and accountability.

6. Top Objectives: SALB hhas designated areas related to ethics, values, fraud prevention, and conseguence
managernant as its top objectives: This signals a proactive approach to addressing and preventing ssucs
in these critical areas
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7. Compliance with Laws: The dgrganisation is attentive to legal compliance and notes areaswhere policies
may need developrent of improvemant to ensure-alignment with relevant lawe and regulations:

H  Human Resource Invelvemnent: The Human Besources section is actively invabved in updating policies
This departmant typically plays a cantral role in policy development ard dissernination, particulady those
related to employment relations

I summarnry, SALE's commitment to rmairdaming and updating a robuct set of policies and procedures; involving
employess in the process, and emphasizing ethical standards and kegal compliance is commendable, Clear and
well-communicated palicies can help ensure transparency, accountability. and a positive organisational eulture

Achievements

Thie achieverments highlight the dedication and commitment of SALB 1o staff dovelopment and training.
SALB Key Accomplishments:

1. Goal Achievement: Despite facing difficulties related to work: practices and building improvernents,
SALR suecessfully accormplished all its annual goals and targets for the year. This demonstrates reslience
and effective managamont

2. Investment in staff Development: SALE allocated RIGTA10.00 for staff development and training
through the Library's Skills Developrnent Fund. Investing in staff developrient is critical for improving
ckills and productivity.

3. Support for Post Graduate Studiess The organisation financed two post-graduate studies and

ermnployees succecsfully obtained their gualifications. Supporting emplovees in pursuing  higher

education k& a significant achievernant that contributes o their professional growth and the
arganisation's knowledge baso.

Encouragememt of Further Education: SALE encouraged staff mermbers to enml in educational

programmes by changing the study policy and gaiming board approval. This inibiative aims to increase

certifications at NOF 9 ang NGOF 10 levels, showcasing a commmitment o continuous learming and
profecsional doveloprment.

Subsidised Study Programmes: Offering a 50% study programme subsidy 1o staff members on fixed

term confracts is a positive <tep. it provides financial support and incentivizes further education armaong

employees.

&, Staff Desire for Training: The growing desire amongst staff members te secure funding for more
training and developrmeant 5 a testarmont to the organisation's positive culture and the perceived value
of learning opportunities.

7. Multiple Course Participation: It i= notewaorthy that some employess over the past years benafited from
more than aone coursa ar training intervention during their developrnent journey. This demaonstratecs a
proactive approach to.skills enhancement

o

6

In surmmary, SALB's achievernents in stalf development and training reflect a commitment to empowenng its
workforce and préomoting continuoies learning. These efforts not anly benefit individual employvess but also
cantribute to the arganisation's overall capacity and success.

Hurman Resaurce challenges faced

The human resource challenges faced by SALB are significant and can have a direct impact-on sialT motivation
and organisational effectivenass.

Here iz a breakdown of these challenges

1.  Lew Salaries: Low salanes can demotivate and reduce morale among staifl. inedequate compensation
carn lead to dissatisfaction and the potential loss of talented employees

2. Lack of Career Progression: The abconce of a clear career progrossion path, garticufarly in terms of calary
notches, can discourage employees from seging a long-term future with the arganigation. This. might
hinder talent retention.

Z.  Inability to Protect Salaries for Mew Recruits The inability to offer cornpetitive salaries to new hires can
affect the arganisation's ability to attract and retain gualified professionals.

4. Inability vo Coumterasffer: ‘When emplovees receive offors frorm other organisations, the inability to
counteroffer compotitive compensation packages can result in stafl turnover.

5. Ho Performance Bonuses: The inability to provide performance bonuses despite hard work can lead to
a fack of recognition for employes efforts.

@, Lack of Training and Capacitation: The ab=ence of funds for staff raining and development, especially
in-escantial Ast-century Hbrary competerscies, can hinder ckills anhancerment and adaptation to evolwng
Job requiremnants:
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7. Flat Organisational Structure; The flat organisational structure can limit opportunities for promotion
and career advancement for exeting staff, which can e demotivating.

4  Position Level Discrepancies: Discrepancies in pasition levels particularly between top leadership
positicrs like Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and those targoted for succecsion
planning, can create inegualitres and hinder talent developrment

9  Staff Shortages: A chortage of Hurman Pesources staff, Financial Officers, Marketing Officers, and no
Website Decign Specialist can strain the HR departmont's ability to offectively manage various HE
funcoons.

10, Limited funds for HR functions: The lack of funds for critical KR functions, such as ernployee assistance
programmes and succession planning, can hinder the organisation's ability to support and develop its
workfarce effectively.

1.  Funding Constraints: The averarching challenoe is funding constraints, which affect multiple aspocts of
HR, from compensation to training and develogrent o succession planning.

12 Dependency on Velunteers: High dependency on wvolunteers for services fike parration and
procfreacing, particularly for Indigenous languages, can lead o inconsistencies in service delivary and
reliability.

To address these challenges, SALE may need to consider stralegles such as seaking additional Turding sources,
reviewing, revising compensation structures, prioritising career development paths, exploring creative solutions
to overcarne staff shortages and support training nitiatives. Addressing these challenges can help boost staff
morale; retain talent, and enhance the organisation s overall effectivenass.

Future Human Resource plansfgoals

The future Human Resource plans and goals outlined by SALS demonstrate a commitment 0 overcaming
fimancial limitations and enhancing various aspacts of HR rmanagement.

HR Key Objectives:

1. Workforce Expansion Decpite financial constraints, the primary goal is 1o continue building and
expanding the library's workforce to better serve the biind and visually ircpaired community. This reffects
a commmitment to fulfilling the arganisation=s mission.

2. Change Management Programme: Doveloping and maintaining a change management prograrmme
5 a proactive step Lo enhance SALE's organisational culture. This can help the organisation adapt to
evolving needs and challenges.

3. Employee Morale: Implornenting HE programmes aimed- at boosting employoe rmorale ic assential for

maintaining a maotivated and productive workforce. High morale can contribute 1o achieving

organisational obfectives,

Succession Planning: Establishing a succession planning strateqy aligned with talent managemeant ic

crucial for ensuring a pipeline of qualified Individuals ready to assurmme leadership roles within the

organisation.

E  Employee Assistance Programme (EAP): The focus onan EAD s a positive step toward enhancing staff
well-baing. Supporting employess’ mental and ermotiocnal health can lead to higher job satisfaction and
procuctivity.

G, Training and Development: The plan to ralse the budget for training and developrment is critical for
keepding emplovess' skills up to date and relevant. Expanding internship and graduate programmme
options = a valuable investment in future talent.

7. Diversity and Incluslon: The goal of increasing the nurmber of permanerit employees with visual
Impairrnants reflects a cormmmitment to diver ity and inclusion. This can provide a unigue perspective and
contribute to the brary's mission.

B Education and Learning: Encouraging emplovess te advance thelr education threugh various learning
opportunities, including official gualification studies-and short courses, GeMonstrates a Carrmitment 1o
arngoing skill developrmant.

9.  Pealicy Developmant and Enhancement: Focusing on developing néw policies and enhancing existing
ones is essential for rmaintaining a clear and effective frarmework for organisational operaticns.

10. Educatlion and Communication: Encuring that staff mermbers are educated about policies and practicos
and boing aware of them is vital for ensuring policy compliance and promoting a positive wotkplace
culture,

I.[lu

[m surmmanry, these future HE plans and goals indicate a strategic and holistic approach t© HR management at
SALB. Despite financial constraints, the arganisation k= dedicated to creating a supportive and inclusive work
emvironment, developing its workforce, and improving its services to the visually impalred cormmunity.
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Mote: The Human Resources tabiles to follow were agapted 1o suit thie SALB requirerneantsas a Public Entity whilst
maintaining relevance and ease of understanding as far as possible. Furthermore, the figures between tables that
roay be regarded as correspanding, may be a litt cured by sorme ermplovess who werns in employmnent during
the year, but not up to and including 31 March 2023 Some personnel costs ware alse included inthe reporting of
Cepartmental costing of Segment reporting In the Annual Financizl Staternents.

Personnel Related Expenditure

Personnel Cost by Programme/Activity/Objective (1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023)

Full time staff (excl, Project
totals below)

%nr Project Coordinator 2nd = 06 2 365

Froject Admin Assitant | |

Eastern Cape Library Project &5 i E 2L
Free State Library Praject [ [ &ET | 138 | | GET
Gau-'tzr;u !_il:l.mn.r P&n}en I | _.-'.._ | et I 1 = )
Kwofuin Matal Library Project [ [ £87 | 145 | | fdid
Limpopo Library Project | | LT i T7] 1 ABT
Mpumalanga Librory Project | | S 164 | z jFTe
Morthem Cape Library Project = in 1 AET
Morth Wiest Library Project aE 5

Western Cape Library Project [ e} L3 z in

Total [ 3797 | 25 453 7528 | &8 | 73

Top Management

Senior Management [P2-3) O&! T 1 1 R&T
Professional qualified (Pe-7) | TS | TER| % | 334
skilled [PE-11) [ E7REG | AET | T
Semi-skilled & other [FI2-15) | A2 | 73, | = | =0
Unskilled [F16-19) I LEm | 230 | i | 3
Total T B as | | o —

Mote: - The Salary Levels in this table s aligned to the EEA 9 table BEsued by the Departrmant of Labor. Alsa, the
totals applied in the table is in lne with the totals for the Full-Time staff component inthe first table abowve.
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Performance Rewards by salary band [excluding Project Staff, Marrators and Proofreaders)

Top Management

Semior Management [P2-X
| Professional qualified [P4-7)
| skilled (Pa-m}
| Semi-akilled & other [PE2-15)
| Unskilled [Pié-0)

Totnd

-

he-Salary Levels in thic table is aligned to'the EEA 9-table issued by the Do nent of Labour. Mo
MNote: The Salary Levele in this table is aligned to'the EEA 9-table issued by the Department of Labour. K
performance reward werne paid during the financial period

Training Costs by Programme/Activity/Objective [1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023)

Full time staff (excl. Project
totaks below)

| Torai 20726 147 on or |

MNote: Soven formal gualifications were funded by the organisation which are cignificantly highar than the soft
skills courses. Building renavation and non-accessibility of training Jecture room hindered the orgamzation from
training staff on in-house coft skills training.

Employment and vacancies

Employment and vacancies by Programme/ Activity/Objective

Full time staff [excl. Project
totaks below)

Sar Project Coordinater and | 1 2 2
Project Admin Assistant

| Eastem Cape Lihm:.- Project [ = L | -
[ Free State Library Project [ 1 I 1
| ’;ﬁamzng' Lii:fra.ry Project I 1 | 1

| MwaZulu Natal Library | ] 2 | =
Project

| Limpeopa Library Project I 1 1| 1
[ Mpumalanga Library Project [ 1 1 3

| Marthern Cape Library 1 I | 1
Project
Maorth West Library Project | 5 = il = e

[ Western Cape Library 3 | 2 I 2
Project

Hote: - Project posts are reported on separately from full time staff in the table above ac each project relates tooa
separate conditional grant
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Employment and vacancies by Salary Band as at 31 March 2023

Top Management
[ Senor Management [(P2- | 1 | |
L]
| Professional  quaiified 5 | oo | i | il -
[Pa-7)
| skilled [Pa-m) i Tl = | ol [ 5375
| Semi-skilled & other [PE3- 2| - = | [ e
15
| Unskilled [PIG-15) i n| B | Z | 2 On
| Tokat Fr [+ | B | 100

Mote: Several positions are frozenfunfunded at SALR due to funding constraint= It = standard practice to review
the need to fill a position in it prosent form, or to freeze a position and/or fund another post with the funding of
the vacated position each time someone vacate 8 position 4t SALR This is done to try and balance the service
operaticns with funding availabllity in a constrained enviranment. The services of Becruitment agencies are often
used 1o assist during the recruitment processes of critical, high-lewval or spocialist posts 1o ensure suitabhy qualified
candidates from designated groups are reached and appointed, At times positions are re-advertised  an
Insufficient number of applicaticons fromn suitably gualified candidates from designated groups are rectivecd
during the first round of advertizsing

Employment Changes

Annual turnaver rates by salary band for the pericd 1 April ta 31 March 2023

Top Management

| Seninr H.am.rgcmcm [F.'i-!-} | 1

| Professional qualified (P4-7) I z | 71 | =
Skilled [PRAT) 1 & | & | 2| =
| Semi-skilled & other (P12-15) i = 3| 3| =
Unskilled (P16-13) | T | T 2z | L
| Total Permanent Staff &5 | = | ] T3

Note: The above tablke refates to the perrmanent staff complirment only and excludes project posts. The changes
an employee movement emanate from termination and appaintmentson the same positions.
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Terminaticns and Employment st the end of the
transfers out of the period 51 Manch 200%

Organisstion

Full time =toff [escl Project
totals below)

Snr Project Coordinator and 2 z
Project Admin Assistant

Eastern Cape Library Project | 2 7 | &
| Eree State Library Project | [ i
| Gawteng Library Project | 1| 1 ]
| MwaZulu Matal Library Project | V| i 2
| Limpopo Library Project | 1| | ]
i Mp!im::la.ﬂqa Library Project i 1| 2 I

Morthern Cape Library Project I 1

Morth Wext Library Project ] 4 1

b

| Western Cape Library Project

Reasons why staff left the Organisation for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

Dremnth

| Resignation | 2| r i
Expiry of contract [ | (el
Retrenched/Dismissal-operational changes
Dizmizsal-misconduct [ 7 | Z5 |
Di:mi:snl-i.n-eﬁ]:izrrql

| Discharged dus o ill-health

| Retirement [ [ B |

| Transfers- promotiona within organisation
Other- Alternative Contract Positions

Total 15 0o

he Propect staff Thare were also
temporany staff who have had contracts ending during the year and that were re-amployed and had their short
ocourrences distort the totals

Hota: The totale in the reascns for staff keaving includes terminations of €

term contracts ending by the end of the financial year again. Th

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Hature of Disciplinary Action Hurmber % of total

wertall T waming

Wiritten waming

Final written warning

Dizrmizsal [ 3| 100
| Poor Performance Counseiling

Total [ 2 | 100

(Tl
(%]
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Employment Equity

Employment Equity Target and Employment Equity Status for Male

Oecupational Band Make

African Coloured Irdian White

Cuwrremnt Target Current Target Current Target Current Target
Top Management
Senior Management
| Professionally qualified | bl ] [ [ ] i
and experienoed
specialists and mid-
| managemernt | | |
Skilled technical and 2 7 F- 3 1 1
academically gualified
workers, Jumior
management.
supervisors, foreman
| and superintendents | . .
Semi-skilled and - - 5 5
discretionary  decigion
making
| Unshkilled ond defined | 3 i
decision making I | _|
Temp/ Contract 7 7 i 1

| Interns | 1

Total | % e a 03] - | - I 3

The mabie above will inciude ermployess who have been paid during March 2025 but whose employrment
terminated by end March 2023,

Employment Equity

Employment Equity Target and Employment Equity Status for Females

Ocrupational Band

African Coloured Indian White
Current Target Current Target Current Target | Curmrent Target

Top Management
| Semior Management i 1

Professionally gqualified and 2 2
experienced speciafists and mid-
| manzgement . . ! .
Skilled technical and acodemicaliy i k! 2 £
gqualified warkers, juniar
management, sSupervisors,
foreman and superintendsnts
| Semi-shilled and discretionary i E | & | 4 | [ [ [ 2
decision making

Unskilled and defined decision 1 2
making

Termp/ Contract [ 7 - | 3 | [ T
Interns . 3

| Total bl &0 CW| o | = =l 1| 3

(Tl
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Employment Equity Target and Employment Equity Status for persons with disabilities

Ocxrupatinnal Bwnd

Cumrent Ta.r.ne't Current Target

| Tep Management
| Senior Management

Professsonally qualified and
experienced specialists and
| mid-mznagement |
Skilted technical and 2 2
academically gualified
wotkers, junior management,
supervisors, foreman snd
superintendentt -
Semi-skilled and discretionary
| hcetion riaking
Urniskilled and defined
decision making | |
Temp/ Contract 2 2

Enterns

Total & 4

(Tl
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B- BEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been comploted in accordance with the compliance to the B-BEE requiremants
as reguired by the B:BEE Act and as determined by the Depariment of Trade and- Industry, Where there is
nocor partial compliance with the critera the entity provides a discussion and indicates the measure taken ta
carmply.

TEMPLATE ON REPORTING BY ORCANS OF STATE AND PUBLIC ENTITIES IN TERMS OF SECTION TG OF
THE BROAD BASED BLACK ECOMOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT 58 OF 2003
AS AMENDED BY ACT 46 OF 2013

HAME OF SPHERE OF GOVERNEIENT [ PUBLIC ENTITY § DRGAM OF STATE - SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND

FEgistration Numbar (1T Apgicanis) ik,
Physial ASdraze: 1125 HHGH STREET, MAKHANDA G135

Type of Sphert of Govemmant ¢ Putic Entity / Ofgan of Stabe: SCHEDULE 34

QrganiEstion Induzty | Sacior EMTITY LUNDES THE DESRATMENT OF SA0RT, ARTS AND

CULTURE (MATIOMAL LISRARY

The follawing table must bé complieted in full by theSphere of Government § Public Entity / Qrgan of State:

Has the Sphere of Government | Public Entity / Grgan of State applied amy relevant Code of Cood Practics (B-BAEE Certificate Levebs 1 -
) with regards o the folimeing

lfcatin Crlerin opwe

i peerrten Lk o

APPROVED BY:

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY:
SPHERE OF COVERNMENT / PLUBUIC ENTITY [/ ORGAN GF

STATE!DATE: 31/ 08 /2023

(Tl
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the dtt Campus, 77 Meintjies Street, Sunnyside, Pretarka, Gauteng, DOO2 A\
A

Tel; +27 {12 7(12)3 ok
I I } X4, Pretaria, Gauleng _'II_I-'_:l
B-BEaCC
COMMISSION

A masmisar of the il @roip

Email: RBamarai B heacommission gov.za

Mr. Malibongwe Nquma
Accountant

South African Library for the Blind
112B High Street
Makhanda (Grahamstown)

Eastern Cape
6140

Per e-mail: Malibongwe nquma@salb org za

Dear Mr. Malibongwe Nguma

COMPLIANCE REPORT FOR SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND

1. We acknowledge receipt of your B-BBEE compliance report submitted 05 December
2022 as prescribed by section 13G of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment
Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003) as amended by Act 46 of 2013 ("the B-BBEE Act")

2. The following reference number 1/12/2022 and has been assigned to this matter, and it
must be cited on all future correspondence.

3. Should you wish to clarify any issues raised in this latter, please do not hesitate to
contact us on +27 12 394 1535 or MRamare@beecommission gov.za

We look forward to your cooperative towards creating an inclusive and growing economy.

Yours sincerely

Lindise Madonsela
Dec & 2022

Ms Lindiwe Madonsela
Compliance Division
B-BBEE Commission
Date: 06/12/2022



1. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL
EXPENDITURE AND MATERIAL LOSSES

1.1 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

The South African Library for the Blind {SALB) dig notincur any irfegular expenditure in the current year and in
the prior years

1.2 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

The Seuth African Library for the Blind [SALE) did not incur any Irregular expanditure in the current year and in
thie Erior years

2. LATE AND/OR NON- PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

CONSOLIDATED VALUE
R'000

DESCRIPTION HUMBER OF INVOICES

Irvoices older than 30 days or 1 11332
agreed period (unpaid and in

dicputo)

Incorrect recarding of the invoice that reculted in impeoper recording of the supplior

3. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

3.1 PROCUREMENT BY OTHER MEANS

The South African Library for the Blind (5ALB] made acquisitions following the SCM processes as pey
Treasury Regulations

3.2 CONTRACT VARIATIONS AND EXPANSIONS

The SouthAfrnican Library for the Blind {SALB) did not vary of expand and contracts
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SA Library for the Blind
Audit Report

For the year ended 31 March 2023

AUDITOR-CGEMNMERAL
S§QUTH AFRI|ICM

Auditing to build public confidence



Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the South African Library
for the Blind

Report on the audit of the financial statements 1

Opinion

1. | have audited the financial statements of the South African Library for the Blind set out on
pages xx to xx, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023,
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,cash flow statement
and slatement of comparison of budget infermation with actual information for the year then
ended, as well as notes lo the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial
position of the South African Library for the Blind as at 31 March 2023 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African
Standard of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standard of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)
(PFMA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the
auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. | am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the |IESBA code.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter
6. | draw allention to the matter below. My opinion is nol modified in respect of this matter.
Prior period error

7. As disclosed in note 30 fo the financial statements, the corresponding figures for
31 March 2022 were reslated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the entity at,
and for the year ended 31 March 2023.




Other matter

8. |draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

8. On 23 December 2022, the National Treasury issued Instruction Note 4 of 2022-23, which
came into effect on 3 January 2023, in terms of section 76(1)(b), (e} and (f), 2(e) and (4)(a) and
(c) of the PFMA. The instruction note deals with the PFMA compliance and reporting
framework and addresses, among others, the disclosure of unauthorised expenditure, irregular
expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure. Irregular expenditure and fruitless and
wasteful expenditure incurred in prior financial years and not yet addressed no longer need to
be disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements. Only the current year
and prior year figures are disclosed in note XX to the financial statements of the South African
Library for the Blind. Movements in respect of imegular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure also no longer need to be disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements.
The disclosure of these movements (e.g. condoned, recoverable, removed, written off, under
assessment, under determination and under investigation) is now included as pari of the other
information in the annual report of the department. | do not express an opinion on the
disclosure of irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the annual report.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements

10. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the South African Standard of GRAP and the requirements of
the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

11. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the
entity's ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducled in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to this auditor's report.




| Report on the annual performance report

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information against predetermined abjectives for the selected material
performance indicators presented in the annual performance report. The accounting authority
is responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

15. | selected the following programme presented in the annual performance report for the year
ended 31 March 2023 for auditing, | selected a programme that measure the public entity's
performance on its primary mandated functions and that are of significant national, community
or public interest.

Page numbers | Purpose
Business XX Establish, manage and maintain the integrated
development electronic Library Management System that

seamlessly correlates all library functions.

Maintain the records of the members of the library.
Issue and receive reading material and reading devices
to the members of the library as well as mini libraries.
Ensure quality control of library collection and manage
the distribution supply chain of library records through
our distribution chain.

Develop the collection of the library through selection,
acquisitions and calaloguing.

Administer copyright management matters.

Promote information access of library resources.
Administer inter-library loans from international
suppliers. '

16. | evaluated the reported performance information for the selected material performance
indicators againsl the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice. When an annual performance report is prepared
using these criteria, it provides useful and reliable information and insights to users on the
entity’s planning and delivery on its mandate and objectives.

17. | performed procedures to test whether:

e the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
entity's mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

* the indicators are well defined and verifiable to ensure that they are easy to understand and
apply consistently and that | can confirm the methods and processes to be used for
measuring achievements

TOUTH AFRICAEM LIBRATY FOR THE BLIND 202Z/2023
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« the targets linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time bound
and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and by
when, the required level of performance as wall as how performance will be evaluated

= the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as
what was committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

= the reporled performance information |s presented in the annual performance report in the
prescriped manner

= there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported and for the reasons
provided for any over- or underachievement of targets.

18. | performed the procedures for the purpose of reporting material findings only.

18. | did not identify any material findings on the reported performance information for the selected
material performance indicators.

Other matter

20. | draw attention to the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets

21. The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned
targets and provides explanations for over- and underachievements. This information should
be considered in the contex! of the material findings on the reported performance information.

Report on compliance with legislation

22. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | must audit and
report on compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial
management and other relaled matters. The accounting authority is responsible for the entity's
compliance with legislation.

23. | performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in
accordance with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa
(AGSA). This engagement is not an assurance engagement, Accordingly, | do not express an
assurance opinion or conclusion.

24. Through an established AGSA process, | selected requirements in key legislation for
compliance testing that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the public
entity, clear to allow consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently detailed
and readily available to report in an understandable manner. The selecled legislative
requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor's report,

25. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per
compliance theme, are as follows:




Financial Statements and Annual Report

26. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not fully prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework, as required by section 55(1) (a) and/or (b) of the
PFMA,

27. Material misstatements of Revenue from non-exchange transactions, Other operating
expenses, cash flow statement, receivables from exchange transactions, current portion
unspent conditional receipts and current portion of unspent conditional grants identified by the
auditors in the submitted financial statement were commected, resulting in the financial
statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion

Procurement and Contract Management

28. Procurement by other means was not provided in the SCM policy of the institution or did not
cover al least the minimum requirements as required by PFMA Instruction Note 3 of 2021/22
par. 4.3 and 4.4.

Other information in the annual report

29. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.
The other information referred to does nol include the financial statements, the auditor's report
and those selected material indicators in the scoped-in programmes presented in the annual
performance report that have been specifically reported on in this auditor's report

30. My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance
reporl and the report on compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included
in the annual report and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
on it

31. My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected material indicators in the
scoped-in programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Internal control deficiencies

32| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not
to express any form of assurance on it

33. The matters reported below are limiled to the significant internal control deficiencies that
resulted in the material findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.




34. Management did not always implement adequate intermal controls to ensure the preparations
of accurate financial reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information. This
resulted in material misstatements that were subsaquently corrected in the financial statements
and findings on the audit of compliance with laws and regulations

AUDITIR - GENERALL

East London

31 July 2023

AUDITOR G E M ER AL
SOUTH AFTRICA

Auditing o bulld public canlidernce




A UDITOR-GENERAL
M SOUTH AFRICA

External auditor's sign-off of AFS tempilate for consolidation = public entity's regular version

South African Library for the Blind
31 March 2023
To: Management of South African Library for the Blind

Cc: Mational Treasury: consolidation team
Ce: AGSA: consolidation team

In response to the 2022-23 Year-End Instructions on final consolidation process, dated 31 March 2023,
we have audited the National Treasury AFS templale of South African Library for the Blind as al
31 March 2023 and for the year then ended, for the purpose of preparing the National Treasury's
consolidated financial statlements. This template comprises the following worksheets: audited GRAP
annual financial statements and notes; inter-entity transactions and balances; summary of uncorrected
misstatements; and GRAP conversion journals. The procedures performed are required by ISA 600

Our audit findings are listed below:

1. The audit of the annual financial statements of South African Library for the Blind prepared in
accordance with GRAP, was completed on 31 July 2023.

2, The AFS template was prepared by the management of South African Library for the Blind in
accordance with the Mational Treasury's Year-End Instructions on consolidation.

3. The worksheel on the annual financial statements and notes agrees with the audited annual
financial statements of the South African Library for the Blind.

4. The worksheet on GRAF conversion Journals for both the current and prior period in the AFS
template is complete and accurate, in all material respects, for the National Treasury to use in the
final consolidation processes.

5. The worksheet on inter-entity transactions and balances for both the current and prior period in the
AFS template is complete and accurate, in all material respects for the National Treasury to use in
the final consolidation processes.

6. The South African Library for the Blind does not have any unadjusted audit differences for the
31 March 2023 final audit.

This sign-off is solely for your information and use in connection with the audit of the Mational Treasury's
consolidated financial statemenis, and should not be distributed to any other parties or used for any
other purpose.

If you have any questions on the contents of the sign-off, please contact me.

31 July 2023

=D

Sivuyile Ndabambi
Auditor General of South Africa

Audliting lo build public confidence

Auditor-General Republic of South Africo
Ww'w.0gs0.Cco rn



Annexure to the auditor’s report

The annexure includes the following:
s the auditor-general's responsibility for the audit

¢ lhe selecled legislative requirements for compliance testing.

Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As pari of an audil in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures
performed on reported performance information for selected material performance indicators and
on the public entity's compliance with selected requirements in key legisiation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor's
report, | also:

= identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control

« obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the public entity’s internal control

+ evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made.

« conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial siatements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the public entity's to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's
report lo the relaled disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My
conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause a public entity to cease operating as a
going concern

« evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the financial statemenits,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transacticns and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I AFFICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2023
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Communication with those charged with governance

| communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting authority with a statement that | have complied with relavant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminale threats or safeguards applied.
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APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Annual Financial Statements for inspection by the Auditor General which appear on pages 5 to 28 have been prepared and
approved by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) respectively

Mr X Yekani Dr Pateka Ntshuntshe Maishaya
Chairperzon of the Board Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2023 31 July 2023
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa
Entity category Schedule 34

Matignal Public Entity

Registered Office 112b High Street
Makhanda {Grahamsiown)
Ezstern Caps:
South Africa;
G132

Main activities Crealing accessible resding opporiunities for blind and wisually impared people

Business Address 112k High Strest
Makhanda {Grahamsiown)
Esstarn Caps:
South Africa;
G139

Postal address P Box 115;
Makhanda {Grahamstown);
Ezstern Cape:
South Affica;
81349

Controlling entity MNational Degartment of Sport, Arts and Culture

Banker Standard Bank of South Africa

Preparer of AFS Brandt Stoftr & Co

Auditors fuditor General South Africa
E=stern Cape Business Unit

Baoard of Directors Mr X Yekan (Chairperson)
Ms M Kganed: (Deputy Chaimparson)
Dr T Mosalz { from 1 Degember 2022)
5 Meerputh { up to 30 September 2022)
E Ramaoka {up io 30 September 2022)
N Ravgee { up to 30 June 2022)
Mr R Maboe { from 1 Ocicber 2022)
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M5z K Dubazana { from 1 October 2022)
Mz D Marska
Dr H Mphidi
Mr M Buthelezi




Page 3

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Director presents their report of the Library for the yearended 31 March 2023

1 DIRECTOR AND CHAIRFERSON OF THE BOARD
The Diectorn'CED = Dr P Mishunishe Matshays and her business and postsl sddresses are 35 follows
The Director
South Afmcan Library for the Blind
112b High Street /P O Box 115
Makhanda {Grahamsiown)
6139 /6140

The Charperson of the Board is Mr Xo¥sa Yekani and his postal address is as follows
7 Btent Strest

Kensingion

Part Eizabeth

5001

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE LIBRARY
The Sowth African Library for the Blind is 3 national Bbrary for bind and wisuslly impaired readars, which renders 5 fres senice
tor its members

3  OPERATIMNG RESULTS
Surplus of R 7502 000 for the year is recorded and is predominantly doe to the following reasons
Increase m incomes;

El Inorease intransfer and subsidies a= well as money that was received at the end of the financial year which was not
utilised in the cument year
b Increase in interest recewed as compared to the prior year

There were vaniations as comparned to the spproved budget; and these are explained in note 22 on the financial statements

4 REVIEW OF OPERATIONS |refer to page 5}
Rewenue for the year totafiz=d R 41 331 000 which represents 3 decrease of 3% over the previous year.
Ezpenditure for the year totalled R 33 787 000 which represents an increase of 4% over the previgus year
Total other {acturial loss and loss on disposal of assets) for the year totalled R 32 000

3  FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENHTURE

There were no iInstances of frutless and wasteful expenditures noted duning the 2022123 financial year. Refer to note 20 for
maore detais.

& COMMITMENTS

The Library had no capital commidiments for the 2022723 financial year
However, the ibrary had service commitments which have been disclosed in note 28

SOUITH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIMD




Fage 4
SOUTH AFRICAN LIERARY FOR THE BLIND
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

T IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Inwestigations into the misappropristion of entity funds have been compisted and the the forensic suditors determined that the
total amount embezzlied was R 2 263 000. Those concemed have been held accountable. All the funds have been fully
recoversd by the entity. Refer to note 29 for more details

B EVENTE SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE
There was no event that cecurred subsequent to the end of the financial year

31 July 2023

P Nishunmtshe-Matshaya Datz
Chief Executive Officer
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
Notes R 000's R 000's
Restated
Non-current assets a7,433 a0,679
Property, plant and eguipment 2 1,615 1,658
Intangible asszets 3 ok 5318 89 120
Current asseils 25,356 20,758
Inventories 4 7,201 5,562
Trade and other receivables from exchange transachons 5.1 2 216
Ciher current financial assets 5.2 - -
Frepayments 53 - 369
Cash and cash eguivalents i 18,153 14.611
TOTAL ASSETS 122,180 TI7.437
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities T84 FET
Provisions for Post Retirement Benefits 7
Current Liabilfities 7,318 7,470
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 8 2,51 3535
Provisions - -
Current portion of unspent conditional grants i0 4 798 3934
Current portion of unspent conditional receipts 11 0 1]
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,103 8,227
Ner Assers
Capital and Reserves 114,686 103,210
Accumulated surplus 114 686 103,210

Toral Ner Assers 114,686 103,210

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 122,789 111,437
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
Notes R 000's R 000's
Actual | | Actual
Revenue 12
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 42 162 41,406
Transfers and subsidies 1241 26.428 25 578
Gifts, sponsorships and donations 12.2 4,046 4 961
Eﬁ:;&;:]rs and Sponsorships (Other Government Departments and 123 11 638 10,867
Revenue from exchange transactions 1,029 1,009
Other income 124 24 427
Interest received/earned 13 1,005 582
Total Revenue 43,11 42 415
Expenditure
Administrative expenses 15 (2.263) {1,305)
Staff costs 16 (15,525) {15.117)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 283 (603) (957)
Marketing costs 17 (40) (254)
Audit fees 18 (777 (774)
Other operating expenses 19 (14,456) (13.866)
Loss due to misappropriation 27 - (377)
Total Expenditure {33,759) ({32,655)
Other (Loss)Gain
Actuarial{Loss)Gain i {21) 1,090
Loss on disposal 2 {11} (98)
Total Other i32) go92
Surplus for the year 9,400 10,752
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Notes Accumulated

R'000
Balance as at 31 March 2021 92,156
Surplus for the year 10,752
Balance as at 31 March 2022 102,908
Prior period aror 2,378
Surplus for the year 9,400

Balance as at 31 March 2023 114,686
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Transfers and subsidies
Gifts, sponsorships and donations
Transfers and sponsorships
Other receipts
Interest
Payments

Staff costs
Goods & services

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Correction of error

Net cash flows from financing activities

Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

Notes

201

2023 2022
R 000's R 000's

44,112 37,889
76,428 35578
4,405 620
12,250 10,867
24 237

1,005 587

(34,797) (32,674)

(15.334) (15,174)

(19,463) (17.500)
9,315 5,215

(600) (787)

(5,173 (5.215)

(5.773) (6,002)

: (315)

; (315)

3,542 (1.102)
14,611 15,713
18,153 14,611
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

202112022 2022/2023
Actual Original Actual
Revenue amounts budget Adjustments Final budget amounts Difference
R O00'S R O00'Ss R O00"S R O00'S

Govemmeant subsidies 36, 445 3,363 RIER s Th] 4 423 3118 2307
Depariment of Sport, Arts and Culture subsidy PERTE 26,428 - 26,428 20,425 3
Govemment grants - projecis 10,56/ 3.035 10,060 13.905 11,554 2,30/
Other Income 27 = FLS 24}
Gifts, Sponsorships and Donations 4,961 5766 - 5,766 4045 1720
Interest received including fair value gain 582 200 - 200 1,005 (205)
Actuaral Gain - - = -
Budgeted Funding from Surplus z 2.000 5055 7.055 - 7,055
Total revenue 42,415 38,029 15,115 54,044 43,191 10,853
Aciuanal Gamn 1080 = - - - -
Total Income L 070 LR EL 54,044 ERR I 0,853
Operating Expenditure

Compensation of employees 15117 20817 - 20917 15,525 5,392
Salaries and wages 12654 16,775 - 16,775 4,874 75067
Social contributions 2, 403 4,142 - 4,142 b,/11 (£, 264)
Use of goods and services 17,636 18,012 15,115 33127 18,266 14,861
Audit fees - external 779 600 - 60U i [(SEEH]
Bank & Other Financial charges 1] 75 - o iy (24}
Board costs 170 100 - 00 hG3 {263)
Book production services: Audio; Braille & BAS a1 244 (T40) 154 62 92
Communication R26 510 - 510 376 134
Consultants, contractors and special services 446 870 - 570 559 411
Corporate Governance Other 79 40 - 470 H g
Courier and delivery 366U 150 50 200 132 L
Entertainment ! - - - = -
General Adminisirative Expenses 604 25 - 23 4y {a44)
General Fees for Senvicas 185 170 - 174 314 (1445)
Legal fees 10 35 2 33 48 (13)
Insurance 112 160 - 160 110 50
Library and information services 4 3.750 71 3821 422 3,389
Foreign exchange related expenses 15 363 - 363 - 383
Marksting costs 254 300 - 300 52 218
Operating lease expenses 237 115 - 113 256 (147}
S p 10,867 5306 12560 14,4996 11,835 6,121
Repairs and maintenance 538 400 (100) Suu 218 (218}
Research and development - 240 = 240 240
Acturial Loss - 200 - 800 21 /Y
Stationery and printing 133 22 - 22 131 {108)
Training and staff development 138 330 - 330 174 156
Travel and subsistence 539 RO0 50 550 405 145
Depreciation and Amoriisation 957 1.000 - 1,000 693 307
Municipal Charges DPW/DAC 208 250 - 24 193 a9/
COVID-19 Expenditure 133 a0 = -1 24 ¥l
Profit or loss on sale of non-current assets 93 - 794 f44 1 g3
Capital expenditure from surplus funding 1,127 1,830 2895¢ - 2,85/
Households - - =
Playback Device expenditure g3 B - - - -
Total operating expenditure 32,753 38,929 15,115 54,044 33, 20,253




Performance surplus

Capital Expenditure
Fixed ASSEls

Vehicles

Computer and office eguipment
Furniture and fittings

Braiile Books PPE

Intangible Aszets
Total capital expenditure

surplus/{dencit)

10,752

Be3
104

9 556

9,400

587
13

6.858

(9,400}

(5871)
(13)

(6,858)

10,343

7,458

(7,458)

0T

1,254

03]
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1 Accounting Policies

1.1 Legislation

The South African Library for the Blind is governed by a board appointed by the Minister of Sport, Arts and
Culture, in terms of the South African Library for the Blind Act [(Act 91 of 1998). As a partly state-funded institution,
its financial affairs are subject o the controls and oversight measures implemented in respect of the public sector
and public entities by the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act 1 of 1993) and Treasury
Regulations, and is classified as a Schedule 3A Public Entity.

1.2 Taxation

As from 1 April 2005, the SALB was deregisterad as a value added tax (VAT) vendor due to changes in the VAT
Act The SALB is further exempted from the payment of income tax due to its non-profit organisation status.

13 Basis of Preparation

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP). The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis and accounting policies have been
applied consistently with those in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated. All figures have been rounded
to the nearest thousand rand.

14 Presentation Currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rands.

1.5 Going Concern

These annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

1.6 GRAP standards approved not yet effective

There are some recommended changes under the following two standards which have been approved but not yet
effective as at 31 March 2023, and have not been early adopted by the library:
GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits

GRAP 104 - Financial Instruments

We do not expect the impact of these updates to the standards to have a material effect on the financial
statements.

1.7 Comparative Infermation

Prior year comparatives:
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period
comparative amounts are reclassified and restated.

The nature and reasons for the reclassification and restatement are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial
statemenis
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SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Conditional Grants and Receipts

income received from conditional grants. donations and subsidies are recognised o the extent that the SALE has
complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria.
conditions or obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised and funds invested until i is utilised. Interest earned
on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is payable to the fJunder it is recorded as part of the
creditor.

Grants and receipts of a revenue nature

Income is transferred to the statement of financial performance as revenue to the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have been met.

In determining whether a stipulaiion is a condition or a resfriction, the SALB considers whether a requirement to return the
asset is enforceable and would be enforced by the transferor. if the fransferor could not enforce a requirement io refum
the asset or if past experience of the transferor indicates that the transferor never enforces the requirement to return the
transferred asset, then the SALB concludes that the stipulation has the form but not the substance of a condition and is
thereiore a restriction. Where the SALB has no experience with the transferor, or has not previously breached stipulaiions
that would prompt the transferor to decide whether to enforce a return of the asset, it would assume that the transferor
would enforce the stipulation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the SALE has a present chiigation (legal or construciive) as a result of past eveniz, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the statement
of financial position reporting date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment is initially recognised when future benefits are probable and the cost or fair value can be
determined reliably.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the assef to working condition for its intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in ammiving at the purchase price.

Examples of directly aftributable costs are: site preparation, delivery and handiing costs and professional fees. The inifial
estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in
the cost of property, plant and eguipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for 8 non-monefary asset or monetary asseis,
or 2 combination of monetary and non-monetary assets was measured at its fair value. I the acguired item could not be
measured at its fair value. its cost is measured at the camying amount of the asset given up.

Subsequent measurement

The SALB applies the cost model to property, plant and equipment.

FProperty, plant and equipment, is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised if it is probable that future economic
benefits or potential service delivery of the assets are enhanced in excess of the onginal assessed standard of
performance. If expenditure only restores the originally assessed standard of performance, it is regarded as repairs and
maintenance, and is expensed.

Impairment

Where items of properiy, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss
which is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that the impairment is
idenfified.

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2
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SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Property, piant and equipment (Cont.)

Derecognition
Froperty, plant and eguipment is derecognised when there 15 a disposal or no future econemic benefits or senvice potential
are to be derived.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and eguipmeant is determined as the
difference befween the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the statement of financial performance.
Ciepraciation is charged to the statement of financial performance.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost, using the straight-line method over the estimated vseful lives of the aszsts.
Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use.

The annual depreciation/ amortisation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives:-

Computer equipment 33.33% (36 months) Office equipment 20.00% (60 months)
Vehicles 20.00% (60 months) Furniture and fittings 16.67% (72 months)
Equipment 20.00% (60 months) Buildings 2 00% (600 months)
Braille Books PPE 20.00% (50 months)

Review of residual values
The residual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual basis.

Review of useful lives
The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual basis.

Review of depreciation method
The depreciation method is reviewed on an annual basis.

Impairment of cash and non-cash generating assets

Froperty, plant and equipment will be assessed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. I any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment charged to the statement of financial
performance represents the excess of the carmrying value over the recoverable amount of the asset

An impairment is reversed only to the exient that the assef’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of the impairment is recognized in the
statement of financial performance.

Intangible assets
An intangible asset s an identifizble non-monetary asset without physical substance.
Infangibie assets are initially recognised at cost.

The SALB applies the cost model to intangible assets, and fair value where an asset is acquired at no nominal cost.

Produciion costs that are directly attributable to bringing the intangible asset to a working condition for its intended use
such as staff costs are capitalized to the respective intagible assel

Intangibie assets are stated af cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment where applicable. The
recoverable amount of an assel is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. For the purpose of
impairment testing. the condition of the asset is evaluated to ascertain its value in use. Where the asset is damaged
bpeyond repair, the fair value of the asset s its scrap value.

Derecognition

intangible Assets are derecognised whan there is a disposal or no future economic benefits or service potential are to be
derived.

The amortisation pernod and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporiing penod date i
there are indicators present that there is a change from the previous estimate.

Amoriisation is provided to write down the infangible assets, on a siraight line basis. as follows:
Software and licences 33.33% - {36 months)
Mazterfile electronic book records indefinite useful life

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2
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1.13.1.3

1.13.2

SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Inventories

inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase,
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition and is determined on
the firsi-in_ firsi-out method. Obsolete, redundant and slow moving inventories are identified on a regular basis and are
written down to their estimated net realizable values.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the SALE becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the instrument, and
are inifially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or liability not at fair value through the statement of
financial performance, transacticn costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
ligbility. The subseguent measurement of fimancial instruments is dealt with as follows:

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have besn
transferred, and the SALE has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. or when the SALE loses confrol
of contractual righis that comprise the assets. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or canceiled or when it expires.

Financial assets
The SALB classifies its financial assets according to the following categories:

1. Held to maturity
2. Loans and receivables

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial asset is acgquired. and is as follows:

1. Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fized or determinable payments and fixed maturty, where the
SALE has the positive intent and ability to hoid the investment to maturity. They are subzequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any adjustment iz recorded in the statement of financial
performance in the period in which it arises.

2. Loans and receivables are financial assets that are created by providing money, goods or services directly to a
debtor. They are subsequently measured at amoriised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any adjustment
is recorded in the statement of financial performance in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is performed at each statement of financial position date to determine whether objective evidence exists
that a financial asset is impaired. The cammying amounts of cash investments are reduced to recognise any decline, in the
value of individual investments. This reduction in carmying value 15 recognised in the statement of financial performance.
Financial assets consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash inciudes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash eguivalents are short-term highly liguid investments that are held
with regisiered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. For the purposes of the cash flow siatement, cash and cash equivalentis comprise cash on hand and deposits
held on call with banks / financial insfitutions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are
identified as irrecoverable. Amounts receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current. A
provision for impairment of other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the SALB will not be abfe
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. An estimate is made for doubiful debts based on
past default experience of all outsianding amounfs at year-end.

Prepayments
A prepayment is recognised when a payment is made in advance of the goods or services being received in accordance
with the agreement/condition under which the advance is received.

Financial habilities

The SALB measures all financial liabilities, including trade and other payables. at amortised costs, using the effective
interest rate methed (excluding provisions). Amounts payable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as
current. Financial liahilities consist of:

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2
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SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.13.2.1 Trade and other payables

1.14
1.14.1

1.14.2

1.15

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subseguenily measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic bensfits will flow to the enterprise and these benefiis can

be measured reliably. The SALE does not as a rule charge fees to its readers.

Where work is done for institutions, a fee is calculated on the cost of producing the required material and is dependent on
a variety of cost factors.

Interest income is accrued on & time proportion basis. taking into account the principal cutstanding.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government grants are recorded as a liability when they become receivable/aliocated and are then recognised as income
on a systemalic basis over the periods necessary to match the grants with the related/deemed costs, which they are
intended to compensate.

Gifts. sponsarships and donations are recognised on a cash basis.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where subsiantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an
asszet are fransferred to the SALE. Assets subject to finance lease agreements are capitalized at their cazh cost
equivalent and the corresponding liabilities are raised. The cost of the item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated
at appropriate rates on the straight-line basiz over its estimated useful life. Lease payments are allocated between the
lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method Lease finance costs are expensed
when incurred.

Cperating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition. Paymenis made under
operafing leases are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant leaze.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on the setlement of creditors or on reporting of creditors at rates different from thoze at
which they were initially recorded are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the PFMA {Act 1 of 1999]) or is in confravention of the SALB's supply
chain management policies. Imegular expendifiure is accounted for as expenditure in the statement of financial
performance and where recoverad, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for 25 expenditure in the statement of financial
performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted Tor as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.21.3

SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavouraiole. that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the annual financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

1. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and

2. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events afier the reporting date)

The SALB will adjust the amounis recognised in the annual financial statements io reflect adjusiing events after the
reporting date once the event occurred. The SALE will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial
effect, or a statement that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events. where non-
disclosure could influence the economic decisiens of users taken on the basis of the annual financial statements.

Related parties

Individuals as well a5 their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to controd or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial andfor operating decisions. Key management personnel are defined as the CEO & Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
There are other personnel reporiing direchly to the CEQ or as designated by the CEQ, however do not have significant
authority.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the organisation pays fixed contributions into & separate entity. The
organisation has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to service in the current or pricr periods.

The organisation’'s contributions to the defined contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those
plans. Contributions are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which the service is
renderad by the relevant employees. The organisation has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-retirement benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Post-retirement health care benefits:

The SALE has an chligation to provide post-retirement health care benefits only to its current retirees. According to the
rules of the Medical Ald Fund, with which the SALE is associated, an active refired member {who was on the conditions of
service wien it was applicable), on refirement, is entitled to remain a continued member of the Medical Aid Fund, in which
case the SALB is liable for a two thirds porticn of the medical aid membership fee (this applies only to the main member,
and excludes dependents).

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs. The plan is unfunded. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method, incorporating actuarial assumptions and a8
discount rate based on the government bond rate. Valuations of these obligations are carried out every two to three vears
by independent qualified actuares.

Actuarial gains or losses are accounted for in the statement of financial performance in full in the year in which it occurs.

Shori-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-term emploves benefits, such as leave pay, is recognised during the period in which the employes
renders the refated senvice (such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses and non monetary benefiis such as
medical care).

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2

U 2l fi0Es




The expscted cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
coenstructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
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SOUTH AFRICAN SALB FOR THE BLIND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Segment Reporting

The objective of segment reporting is to provide informafion about the specific operational objectives and major activities
of an entity as well as the resources devoted to and costs of these objectives and activities. Management has identified
the following services to be reported on as segments: SALE Information Services, Audio Production and Braille Production
(incorporating Braille Consultancy). These three senvices are the core sections of SALB and meet the criteria set out to be
disclosed as a reportable segment. The other services are more administrative in nature and will thus form part of the
unallocated/ceniral total. Furthermore only expenditure and specific sectional production assets is reported separately and
reviewed for each of these segments, while revenue and liabilities are reporied af the consolidated SALE level

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of avaiiable information and the application
of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual resulis in the future could differ from these estimates which
may e material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The SALB's managemeant determines the estimated useiul lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and
equipment including intangible assets. This estimate is based on the pattern in which an asset's future economic benefits
or sernvice potential are expected to be consumed.

Provision for impairment

On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired.
The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivable's carrying amount and the present value of
esfimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Post retirement benefits

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of faciors that are determined on an actuariat
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact on the camying amount of post retirement obligations.
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Proparty, plant and sgquipmant

Compartar &
Motor Offce Fumiture &
Bulidings ehlcies Equipmant Fittinge  Erallie Booke  Equipment Taotal
R ood's Roos R00drs R 0008 LR ROG0a R OO0
YEAR ENDFED 31 MARCH 2022
Med carrying valus aaat 1 April 2041 B7 1] 1,210 127 164 1,688
Cast or valuation T fJ1%4) B 113 T.265 0T
Accumuladed depreciation T (152} £2.072) (586 {1.311) {3,738
Mdditiors (i f04 FOT
Dispo=als £BG]} 191 =] ¢
Depreciation chahpes (k] {48} 181 43 53) {FRE)
Mgt carrying valus as 3t 31 March 2022 i 1,233 185 101 1,654
Co=tor waluation 240 3873 1485 1,465 5,068
Accumuliied depreciation 200} 2 6455 (200 (1,384} {4, £049)
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
Met carrying value aa 3t 1 Aprii 2022 40 1,233 185 101 1,552
Cont or valuaton a4n 3,878 a5 {485 5,068
Accumulaied deprecabion (200} {2,6459) [200) {1,364} {4, 405
A ition s T 1& &0
Dizpoaajs it 11
Deprecinfion chame 3B} [ maa ] (49 {38} (533
Met carmying value 28 at 31 March 2023 ! 1,369 157 &5 1,615
240 4454 K 1,465 6.557
236} 13, 085) fad) {1403} . 842)
Intangibls gsssts
Intangibie assels consisl of softwarne, licences and mastedie slecimnic eoonds
Luglo =i Bralile
Produciion  Productionin-  Production  Production In-
ppibar House Sppihar Houes Softwars §
Faztarfia Maghsrilis Mastarflia Magterflie Licances Tats|
TEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2021
Met carrying value as 3t 1 Apri 2001 § 442 ¥A,042 2676 29 240 323 78,725
Cost ar valuation Gad 35,042 2876 29 240 4Ed 79,6B8
Arciemulated amartisslicn [1ET) {181}
Additnns 4,038 2374 40 2744 9,556
Dimposals
Amaoriisation change | 161) {181}
Mgt carmylng valus as at 31 March 2022 13460 20418 .07 11,584 162 08,120
Coml or vahiation 13260 20,418 1078 11964 2fd 88,442
Accumulated ammoriisation [ |EX22)
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH F023
Met carrying valus 23 at 1 April 2022 11480 40,418 1076 31,904 162 0S8, 120
Codt ar vakaiion 12480 20416 1076 31,864 g4 5,442
Accumulated srmaorisaticn |33} (ax2)
Addiions 1276 2,745 45l 2197 6,858
Dhsposals
Amortisasion charga [ 16} {180
Met carrying valus 2a 3t 31 March 2023 14,7656 43,181 3,538 14 361 2 45,818
Coul or valuadian 14 756 43,161 3,536 I AGT 4f4 56,300
Accumulated amorbsobion Cloed] {£A2)
SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2022/2023 M
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2023 2022
ROQ0a R 0a0"s
currsnt Aeeets
4 Inwemiories
Teohinical Services - Playback Devices o046 5,307
Braile Prodgucian - Braille @ aper 255 255
7201 5,562
The imcrease in ivmtory during the 20222023 finencial yeer can be aSdbated io the pruchase of sdditonal phytace dovises.
5. Trade-and Other Recaivables
5.1 Tmde receteabiles rom exchange imnsactions 2 iy
Amouts recovermbis from ifess and wasiefl eopendibre 189
-] 214
Los= Impalmend recoprised
2 216
Currani
Trade receivabies from eschange transactiors 2 il
2 e
30 Daye
Trade recofvabiles lrom exchange trmnsoclions
The fair valkie of fhe irode and oéhor recoivables npproximoies heir caryieg value: The credil gually of trade and otfr
Tecoivabies that are meilher post due- mor impoined can be pssessed by reference i axlemal credit mtings or hisiobcal information
aboul default rales
5.2 Prapayments (prepsld sxpansss|
Liosree= and substriptioms 359
- SES
-5
B Caeh and cash equivalenis Including current invesimants
Cinsh boak balance al bunk at begiming of the: year 14,555 15,687
Cu=h boak balarce on hmnd {palty cosh) al beginning of 1be year (iry dad
14,811 15713
Ci=h boak balance al bank al and of the yoar 180689 44,559
Cz=h book balance on hand fpalty cosh] al end of the yeas ed a2
18,155 14,611
The tntal nesiricted cash al year end is represenied by Be curmenl poriian of tispen] condilionn] grarnis {Mobe 135) (4 Tl 3,934
Togal cash orid cash equivalents included in the cash fow siatement comprise e Tolowing stalemen of finandal position
armmeis
Cash and cash eguivalents =i end of e pear 18153 14,691
Cash and cush egquivalenis al beginning of the: yoar 18 511 o,y
Caen and c2an equlyaiants movemsnt Sooid i!l.!ﬂ

The fair vakie of cash and cesh oguivalenls approsimales Sheir @mying roloe

The South African Library {or ihe Slind operabes a coment sccourd with no oveerdraf facility with Standard Bank of South Affica,
BARK: Siandard Bark of Sauth Africa

ACCOUNT WUMBER: 082 004 158 [ Currenl Accouni)

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 08E417844 (Call Accound)

BANK: STANLIE (Slandord Bonk Groug)

ACCOUNT MUIMBER: 05390B402 (Money Matat Fund Account)

BRANCH: Gratamstown {Johammestuory - Heosd Ofios )

BRANCH CODE:- 450317

The South Africain Libary for the Blind opemies o oumoen sccourd with no overdrafl faclily with Reserve Booth of South Africa
The detinils e na follomes:

BANK: Reserve Sank of South Alrica

ACCOUMT NUMBER: 95000630 (Call Accourit|

BRANCH: Johanncshiang  Heod Office

SOHATH AFRICAM LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2022/202
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
[T R 0008

T Proviekon for Fost Refirement Benefits
Post-Rotiemant Heslh Cors Senedil Lishilliy T84 T
Tokai: Pmi—nwramantuammm Eenafit Llﬂhﬂll:j' 74 TS7

The Lisrary prowides posi melberment msdical eosfils by funding the medicel aid coniribitions of netied memibers of he Library,
Acomrding io the nues of the medical =i fund wilh which e Liirary is associnlod, @ member (who was on the previous condifion
of service), on refeemnend, = entilled bo remaic B contimeed membes of such medical aid Tund, rwhich co=se the Library = Babie
Tor & ceertain poriion of the medical aid membership, Gnfy bso qualfying membsors are remmaining on e scheme

The mezsi recent ackunniad valumtion of e preseni volue of the unfunded defined benefil obiigalion was @mod oot as a0 31 March
202X by OO Consull, o member of the Aciuarial Sodety of Scuth Al The present value of the defined obfigation, and the
malnted curmond sarvice cost nd past service cost, wone messured using the Projectad Uinit Credil Method

The Pzt -Ratiremant Health Came Senelil Plon =2 defined benafil alar, of which Us members pre mzde dp as Slloees:

Contirumntion members [nelinees | 2 2
Tatal ] 3

The finbifity in respec of pasl sarvice kas been eslimated o by as foliows:

Conimioton membes T 1,778
Tatal Rapility 784 1,778

The Library makes monibly contritnglons for bealth core arsngemenés (o the Folowing medical ald schames
Bonlins Medical Scheme {1 Apil 2022 o 37 March 3023} - One ponsioner
Dizcovery Health Scheme {1 April 2023 80 31 Manch 2025) - O pensiones

The: currant service cost for the yearending 31 Morch 2023 is esimated & be B nil (2032 R nill whereas o imerest oost is
s=irmated 1o be B TE 000 (2022 R 155 000 The srherisl loss s refllecied on be foce of Us Staiemend of Fooncinl
Pardarmance

SOHATH AFRICAM LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2022/2023F
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S0OUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TC THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Pravigkon for Poat Retirsment Banefits cont

The princpnl assumptions wed for the poiposes of the ackuanal valoitions wee g Eellows:

Rate of intarast
Dizcoon rie
Health care cosst inflation rale
el DiEscount Aok

Muortahity raies
Pogi-retimment

Maormal retiramant age

The normad refirenen age for employecs of the SALE 65 years

The emouniz recognizad in the siatemsant of Nnancial position ars 3z follows:

Pregent value of unded shigation=

Presand vake of unfunded oblgitions
Urmecognized past servier sl
Unfecognized aciuarial gains | losses)
Fregent vale of unfunded obligations

Hat Lisbinty

PAED wamoie oblo

2023

R OO0

11.06%
a.12%
2.54%

7h4

2022

RO00%

10.57%
BE11%
2.28%

757

TE4

757

76T

757

The movemeant in the defined baneft obligation ower the year e aa followa a8 darlved from the actuarial report:

Balorice ot begirming of year (1 Agil)
Recogrised past seorice cost
Curent senice oot
Inierest oot
Benefils paid
Mctuarial foss | {gain) on the obligatian
MNel mpact of seliletrenl cost

Balonce ot end of year (31 March)

The effeci of u 1 % movement in the assamed mrie of boalit core cost nfladion is as follows

Imcrease

Effect an the curnen| cosl and the ingeresl cosi
Effect on the defined bamefi obigation

Decrez=e

Effect ot ther curmainl cost and the inderest cost
Effect an the defined bemefit oblgaiion

Trade gnd other payabiss from sxchangs tramesctions

Trade credilors

Trade receiyabies with credil babsnce
Leayve gralully zocnual

Mcorusl for bomrns

Proviskons {Current Lianliiies)

Provisicn far periformance awards
Balanos at beginninig of year
Provision ulifised
Contrilution o prossian

TET

f]
i
1

1,776

195
(124)
{1.083)

B
44

e

7at

agrF

1.581
507

1,312 B9

1,686 105
538 5|

2531

186
1188)

Parlomance awands are paid based on the performance of the SALE. ox well 2= individun] pedormpnos. The provision bs-an
estimabe based on unaudied profils as well b= histoical perfformance pwards paid. No futthed contribalions base been mode in
thes curmend financind ypesr, == the poymean of pedormance awards has been disconfinoed for fie corment pear
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

10 currant partfon of unepent conditionsl grantz
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
Balance Canditions E;;mmmn i
unzpentat  mat Cumant year £attre
tha beginning franeferred o racelpis :1:“ af the
of the perlod  revenus A
Provincial Depattrment of Soorl Ars and Cullire
Kwazruln Mool Library project 195 (1. L85] 1,855 569
Mpumabengs Librery project T (1,848} 1.50:0 o]
Eastmr Cape Library project 535 (2,725} 1421 1187
W oalom Cape Library projoct 298 A7) 1201 aig
Morh Wiast Library projoct 236 1. 236] agy @
MNorthesn Cape Lbrary projeci RAR (1378} 1 e 472
Froe State Libary project i (710 1,000 £11
Gauteng Librery project T34 [F16] 2,000 1,658
Limpops Librany project 2l (el 1,003 72
Totaile 3,534 {11688 12,552 4,758
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
Caonditions
Balance Condifons st to b
unzpentat  mat Cumant year £ at tre
tha beginning franeferred o racelpis :1:“ af the
of tha period  ravenus periad
Provincial Depatimant of Sporl. Arts and Cullums
Kourazidn Noind Library project J4E (1.9%1) 1.860 145
Mpurmalanga Library project 318 (1,243} 1. 500 T
Eastarn Cape Libemry nrojoct 358 (1,833} 2000 535
‘Weslam Cape Library projsd 413 (1317} 1.20:0 285
MNorih West Library project 152 (1,037} S0 235
Mothern Cape Library prajeci 876 Lirdi ] 1.00:0 E48
Froe State Library project 91 97 1,000 121
Gaut=ny Librany projeci t.oan (255 334
Limpopo Library project 7T 1954 1.200 553
Totals 4,141 {10.5ET] 10,860 3,934
Govemment granls ane recognised it accordonce with grant conditiona
2023 2022
11 Currsnt portion of unspent conditional raceipts [ R 0008
J=in Wood Trimt
Balance unapent at o begnning of the poricd aoz £1d
Condiionis ine! tronshermed o revenus (302} {410j)
Current yens recoinls a2
Condhiiors ailll io b mel al the end of e period - 02

Urspent condiional receipts me funds meceived upfrantin mspect of planned fisure prosects which have: pot ped
been refansed o the stalement of fimancial performance
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
R D00'e R OCD's
12. Revanusa
#An analysis of SALE's revenue. = as Tallows:
Han-exchange revenas 42162 41408

121 Transfare and subsldias recelved

Mational Departnend of Spor, Arls and Culiure [DIEAT) I TR ACE I I PR I

Fub-Total 26,423 25,578
122  Gifte, sponsorehips and donations

Damalions and boouosis 438 114
fadia preductian 2] 22
Josie 'Wood Trist a0t 410
Esntale Balhn Project Income 1461

Aooessible Book Consoriium Boneficiary (non-cazh| 1,685 4 341
Brallis producon 24 T
ub-Total 4048 4581

123  Tranafsre and Sponsorships (Oiher Governmant Depariments and Entities)
{Matienal Entity and Provincial Department of Sport, Arts and Cultbure)

KwaZulu Matal 1ABE 1911
Mpumnkangn 1648 1,242
Ensiern Cope 2,725 1.B33
Western Cape i Th ] 1.317
Mosh Wes=t 1336 02T
Morhem Caps 1376 E28
Free Stale T 870
Capjeng T16 755
Limoopt a2% 544
2ub-Total 11,688 10367
Exchangs revenuse 1,028 1.025
124  Odnerincoms
Sundry income 4
Frofit on fomeign exchimnps 20
#araunt recovered Trom the lo=ss 188
Aqmaunt recoverable fram the bss 189
Fub-Total 24 AT
—_—
13 Fiterasl recalvediegmed 1,004 532
14. RaconcHiation of budgeted serplo s with the surplus in the statement of financial parformance
Hat surplus per the final budget i .
Adjusied for
Interaat received and fair value gain on imcetmenis in excess of budgeled smount 295 (1B}
Aciuarial Iossimmin) on posi reliement medical aid provisian 1.090
Oonations and bequesss received and nol bedgelsd Tar (e720) 4,351
Gapwernmant grants proyects oves budpeled {2,307 {1534
Surrdry income recehved and nol budgeisd for 24 427
Budgeled funding from surplus: (T.055) (4240
Expendibre reguareed = per approwad budgel:
U=z af govesnment goads ar services 14,861 82T
Compensaton of employses nol budgeisd for 5,392 4,738
Hest {deficll} surplus per the statement of fmanclal pedformancse 9,400 10,752

In terrres of Para 53(3) of the Public Finanrce Management Act, 15999, o public: endity moy not badget for 2 defici anvd may not acomulkete
sumplusas unberss written approvd of The Malicoal Tressury hos bosn obinined. The SALE apples for relealion ol the surphes fonds annuoly
and il apply for neenlion again once the 2023 finencial yesr audit B conclided

15. sominietrative sxpenses
General administrasive exoenses [T 218
Insurmncn 110 112
‘Water, Elociicity expense DAC/DPW 153 208
Feex lor services
Gererd {Subscrpbona) T 185
Boend expanses 583 70
Comomals governance £} 78
Legn foes 48 10
Shionery and printing 131 1313
Bank & Other Finonce charges a7 58
Training and siaff developmenl ird 138
Tatal 2268 1,305

SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND 2022/2023 [

242025 ¥




Page 2]
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
(]
18, Staff conte
Wages and salarlss [:% Em] da%
Arrusal bamuasess | 13l chegquen) 1,526 175
Housing allwaice 435 56
Tempemry saff 285 101
Leave gratuidy 20
Posi meteemnen] medical benefis [Refer to nole 7 & Ta
Sanior Management (Rofer 1o naks 21} | 1765 ] [ 2357 |
Chief Executive Oficer 1041 1,341
Persisnable salary ~BAT | EAFY
Man parzonable =alory a4 111
Bonu= Be &4
Howming allownnoe i 17
Othet employer contribalions 124 215
Chiat Financlal Offlcar 724 011
Permisnable salary i3 E49
Mon-parzionobls =alory i a4
Borus Fic &1
Houzing allownnoe ] 17
Oither srmpioyer conlribalisns 3f 140
Defined cantributian plan expenses [_I'TI"I'J |_m5"|
Zocial contributions (emplayers contrbulions)
Kbedical LT 1.058 |
UIF 243 ar
Parzin 4037 1237
Other =afary reloted costs z 421
Tatsl 15,525 _ 15,117
Salary costs associaied with the boak produciion rocess mne capkalised as Intangible Assets onder note 3
17 Markaitng costs
Ganeral markeling capenses A0 254
Tatal A0 254
sy
18 Ludlt feas
Extmmal audit fews 485 B17
inlernnl audit foes 282 162
Total 17T [EE]
13, Otnar operating s=peness
Con=ulants, confraciors and special servioes 555 445
COWVID- 18 releed exponditun (Reler o oole 25§ 24 133
Formsign exchange related expendiure 16
Flaytmck device copendibrs T3
Tactile book expendium 3 11
Ensiern Cape Library project 2725 1,812
KiwaZulu Malal Libfary projec 1465 1.813
Mpumakanga Library project 1,640 1241
Weaisim Cape Library project uTt 1LAF
Morth West Library project 1,236 1026
Morthem Cape Library project 1378 nan
Gauleng Libeary project TiE TE6
Free Giate Liorary project T 71
Limpono Libmry project i a4
LErary and informalion services expendilure 422 ]
Eook production senvdoes: Audio and Brailla {non copiled cxpenditure) 82 k!
Ropaim and maimisnance 518 538
Propery and building= 33 54
Mol Yihicles 7z 32
Equinmenl 113 451
Travel and sob=irnce 405 ]
Courder and defvery charges 132 Jaa
Commumitation cosis 76 626
Lo on Sale of Man Current As=nis it
Operaling lease expense: equipment (Refer io oole 18.1) a5E Z2X7
Total 14, 456 13,086
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Oiher cparating expensas cont
Opsrating lgases: Equipmant

Analy=pd on folloves.

Mimirmum: ope rmiing keaoe entals 2 E3
2 2]
SALB rarms equipment ordet o non-cancellable operafing legse for 80 months with the oolion o renes
Fuhre commimenis {indutfing WAT) onder nen-cancellabie operating larses are spmmarised an folloss
R 00d'e R o0d's R 000
23 W ithin 1 E% 2. 5 yenrs Tkl
Minimumn fulure bese poyinenls b
2022 Within 1 year 2 5 years Tiotal
Minimumn fulure bese poyinenls [4] 2 el
Escalation clauee
Thare is na escalafion clause
Reconcllation of surphuae / [deniclt) to cash Nows from aperating, investing and finencing activities
Caeh Nows from cperating activities
Surphus aftor inferes and other gaines 5 400.00 &, 751
Aeljrrted for:
Increzse in employes benefits 7o) T3
Inlemst fiin] 57
Othar Income {245
-Loss on sale 1
= fcowmulnted sunples!correction of erar 2376
- Depreciafion/Amordisation (Refer o notes 2 and 1) {1,008)
-Acruarial gaingloss | at
Loss o disposal 11
+ Nom-cash mvenue from TIGAR beneficiary {8 TaA) (4,245
- Man-cash Titw increessi fecense | in provisians (1965
Co=raling cash iows befare working capital changes GERT 8244
Changes In working capitel
Decreass in tade and ofher receivables 214 4052
Increase in irvemnlony (1 E38) 4,803
Decreass in prepayment 3GE
Decreass in tmade and other payables [ Xizi-1] [reaiid]
-Uir=gend condiiional granis Bgd
Increase i unalibealed recoipls 158
(t.207) [i:0T]
Cash generated from operations 8450 4534
Inlerest receteed 1.005 5852
Ofher Inoome 24 8
Cagh Nows from opsereting activifies 5485 5.215
Rslated party transactions and balances
The S Litimary for the Blind recognises e (oflowing persons and or imafitaions o related portiers:
SALE Beninr Manogems and thair closs Bamily members; Tha Naticoral Depariment of Spord, Arts and Colture (DSAC | and Publc Enfilies. @2
el an Provinckil Departrmends wnder Beir caonérml,
Ralatad Party transactions 3811 JE.a45
Department of Sport, Arns and Cullume - Trensders and subsidies 26428 25.87E
Froyincial Depardments of Spod, Ars and Culture: - Mini brary peoject Granis 11 E&8E 10667
Refer fo pate 10 for tee balsace of Inspent Cconaiional grandis fom Me Provineis! Deparments of Sport Arts and Colure.
K&y managament parsonnal
Chief Execulivis Officer (CEO) Mr M Miombels - upto 31 Suby 2023 Biz 1941
Chisf Execuitive Officer (CED) Or Paieka-Nishunishe-Matshaya-fram 1 Febroary 2023 228
Chial Finendial Oficer {CFO) Mr Y Rarmchsman-ug o 30 Moy 2022 487 1011
Chief Foatndal Ofcer {CEO) K P Moyatheli-fom 1 Jamuary 2023 25T
Senior Manager: Lboory and inforraion Senvices M= L Moneks B?5 E21
Semior Menager Production and Standards fts & Mahangama (Acting CED « 11 Apid 2022 1o 3% Jamery 2023) 13687 B2 448
Senior Manager, information & Communication Techmalogy Kr 5 Mini 424
Senior Manager: Information & Communicabon Technology ir C Ramurshomm 1a7
Head Humon Rosoures Mr M de Lange [Ading CFO - 10 Moy 2022 o0 37 December 20337} f=a 1] B2 1T%
Refer o ngte 10 for deizied treayoown o1 CEQ ang CFC Emunersmon
Board membera
li 2 Bt
Board Tegs: 143 !
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¥ ¥ekani [ Chaiperzon)

M Kganedi (Deputy Chairperson|

S Neerputh 30 Sephamber 2022

E Remaoka up 16 30 Sepember 2022
M Ravgoe up to 30 June 2003 fresigried)
M Masuthn

B Mphidi

M Budtheles

O Maruha

F Dobayam from 01 Ooiober 2023

R %laboe from 81 Ociober 3022

T Mosak fram 01 Deocomber 2032

K Gavender from 1 Oiciober 2027

[
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13 11
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2. statement of Comparison of Buoget and Actual Amounts

221  Basls and Partod of Budget and Actual Amaunts
Tha occownling basi used for bodged presentation purpases i the sconml basis. The dassFication basin used & derkved from infermal
munagemerni funclionalty reporfing which is dosely aligned o the Nalional Treasory suscerdy reporting templabe. The petod of e oporoved
badgel = for the 202323 finencinl year with compamative schal expeedilure shown fdr the balh the 208122 and 302233 peripds. The
adjusimomis 1o the ariginal sopoved budget weee duly spproved by the Accoumling Officer a= delegated by the Aooocmting Authonty.

222 MajorVarlances n Statement of Compariecn of Budget and Actual Amounts | overiunder 10 %

Govermmant grants- praject yarionce s dus o e msepent fund from 3022 finandal year, The meson for not-sending 100 % grant fom e
provinces is that mmsfors ane not paid fo:5ALE at ihe same lime and =ome Eanfers anre paid oo thao st mongh on the Sooncind year. The Gifl
Eponsorship ond Domations category of revenue decreasst i o redudl of 2 docresss in Accessble Book Consoitiom Seneficiary Income.
SALB recoived mone inlerest that whirl was anficipmbed.

A \oial off R 5, 055 million was adjusied from e original budget of R 2 milion o make up R 7 055 million surplas furd thal was aporosed in
Movember 2022 by Malional Traesury and e funds could not be spont because of e procuremeont circular thal prevenied enfiies 1o
prociFe goocs ond service 0 December 2022 and also the focl thal H'tmrmnxﬁmh:ﬂ_m:mnﬂ-m. Some of lhe funds were sermaiad
far Buniomis and thal fimfure can only be purchased when e consatrochon s complste . Regeests tomeiain the funding was seni o mlevarl
authorities.

Compensaton of Employoes vaiancs = due o vecnni posions durng the finencol ponod, padicularty af senior maregoment evel howeyer
the acting ollowance was peid for the Acting CED and additionn] responsibilty alfownnce was= paid o acting CFO. Aud fees ond Board cost
Incroased due I e forensic investigation that fook ploce dunng 2022 financial yeas.

Bank chorgas moroased due o fha anmal bank charges noooes.

Communication happed in the provinoes in most cozes andes the Mini Lirery projects Consularis decmased becauvse SALR used e
conmulinnés during 2022 finenciz] year

Copotdls goesmance due to less claims: corparnfe govemance fees, Courier senvioes decreased due o the lecs mquest of defivary fom
the mebers

Undoer gemern adminisiration expendibune, e noome B due o the reciiment sxpendituee i panticutar for tbe CEOQ- ond CEO posibons.

Gener] fees for servises ncreases dus o Librry and Informsaton Services [LES) subsoription fees. The vardance on legal Tees i due o the
labour Issues thal recuied legal advice. Insumnee varanoe & due o nok submiiing chimed thad requied SALS o pory exdra cos2 sudh as
BECESE,

Lrary and indomaton services did ess colleclion pring copies and ihmte was no expenditune an lebel droulation as well as pachaging
cirpulaticn henae the drecense,

SALB did not pay foreigh exchonge related expenmes.
Openiling lense exponses increass is due o the need o renl s spoce for the some equiprment end files while the constrocion s ondensiy

Project expanses variance is due o the fund not baing ransierred on lime. Some provinees rarsfesred fumts on e k=t day of imancial yeas
and.

Repain nnd mainkmance warance & doe o the-oadma repains bl wece eguied Io be dome on SALS vehicke, Mo research ond development
ook place in 20022 financial yemr.

Aatirial loss waramce is due o SALB pol hawing & huge lows on actusrial in 202F finoci| year

Training and sizff develpmenl variance is dus o some staff members not abie o atlend the plarmed rominrgs

Shdionary and printing increased doe (o the high demand on stafionory from the siafl

Trawefing and subsisiehce variance ks doe o Increase on aveling and ciximes from new employees thal includes CED and CFO.
Dreprocinbon voriznoes is due o sgme assel hove fully depreciaied diring the caren year,

Wunicipal charges variinoe is due (o menicipality billing SALS less of wial was anficipated.

Covid-18 expesidiures wisne lees bhoan anficpuied dioe to fewer sioff wocking from the office groan @ rotslional sork, anngesma©i
impfemanied.

Oeher spvings wen realised ol communicalion cosis, consukinis or special services fees and morkeling cosls becoine ol the
communication and marketing happened in the prosinces ender Ming Loh projects thenefore the change from previoes years: = due b

Tha priar year's surphs funds weee retnined 1o supplement the curren yiar budget for the soquision of stare eguipment snd Frrnitome,
Howewver, as the builders Toll behind schadubr we could not purchase e siom eguipment and furniuee during the 2025 financial yeoar,

3 Risk managemant

interset rate gk / current Investment riak
The curreril acoeur and the investme accound expose e Librery o coch flow inlerest rale sk Deposils agract nieress ot e el
waries acmrding fo the pime barking mie | flucdunticns i the financinf seciorimarked

The Librmry manoges this interet ms risk by ensuing fhat all surphas funds are invesisd in fioed (@il s iestriments and by maintaining the
minimun possible balonce in e ourrent aooount. The indecest mies on the edcall deposits are fixed, bt vany Trom imveestnent 1o
IenstmaTii.

Currency rek

The fibrary undarinars corian trenoacions denominnbed in fomsign oarencies, efthoer direclly through the impord of goods and sendoes, o
indinactly throagh the @aant of controcts o ool impariers which are griced in foneign cunenoy, These tansactions were muinly for playback
devices. book tithss and spares.

Siringent cash management procedunes a0 placs. Theess nclude cish flow forecesiing. A sensiiely anabesis has nof been pecformed and
indutded &5 the Livary s moposed o foreign exchange rish on o limided basis: @s payments to the major foreign suppliors. RRIE and Human
wane, are ganarailly mede in advance.

Cradit fak
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Credit rish consisls mainly of cash deposia, cash squivalenis and debtors. The Lbrory onfy deposiis cash with major banks and firanoa|
Instkutinns which have bigh quality credil slanding and kmits exposine o any one counber-parky.

Adopuate provisian bas tean madie for anticisted bad and doubtful debts - Addilional infermalion relafing o the analysis of debtons is
provided for bndet node 4 o the froncinl =isdemenis. The maximen exposere to credit rigk & te cosh alance of bank and debiors. which
oy inCrease as a resull ol non Erymenl by debiors oF the - bk

Trade Recalvabilss

Monagemeni evaluales credit risk onan ongging besiks. Faciors such as past experience, payment hisiony, e elatinnship with the
dabiorcusiomer and ogresments ore token isto conaidermntion. No colalest is beid far any debtor. Managoment is of (Fre opinion that dobioes
dizrlo=ad pt yrar-ond are fully recovomahbin

Liguidity Rlzks

The Entity’s risk to Squidity |5 & resull ol fhe funds available o cover fulune commitmenis. Manogement evakiates Equidity rish throwegh an
onguirg review af fulure commiimernts ard credit clifes: Manegoment futher marages tha Ask by monlionng ils cash flow regquiremenis.
Monogemant & of the opinion that tha not carying value of e liabiites approcimaie their ok vohee and that the-entity hes sufficient
rr=ources o setlle Bs short-berm Eabilliles

Falrvalue:

A 31 March 2033 and 31 March 2022, the carying valves of finandal rstrurnents repdried in tha finemcal siatements spproximale their fai
walum.
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
2023 2022

23 Risk manepament conl

Financlal Azeete carred st Amoriiesd Cost
Canh and Cash Eguivelenis 10,t53 16041
Trade and other Recefmbles from axchangs imm=acions o e

Osher Curreni Fimancial assets

Financlal Liabilifles carrad at amortiesd coat

Trade and e Payabies from exchange innsacions F529 2888

Liquidity Rlzk
Lese than Graater than
12 months 12 months

4gat 31 March 2023

Trade Payables 387

Leave Sralully sccrual f 509

Bonus Accnaal i

&g at 31 March 20322

Trade Payabies Az

Leave Galuky ooorund 1,888

Bomus Arcroal 538

24 Eagmant Reporting

1. The South Africom Library for the Blind {SALB) hes identified e Tollowing setvices io be reporied on as segmenis Libaty Information. Services: Audio
Production and Bradle Produclion (incarpomaiing Mational Braile Advisory Senices), These theee services ane lhe cone seclions of SALS and meet the
crilerin s=i oif 1o be discloeed as a reportabls shomenl. The other services are more administrative in notwe ood will Swes fomm pan of e malocsEedicontal
total. Furthermom: only sapendiure and specific seclionaf prodection f=seis ane reporied saparaiely and roviewsd for 2ach of these segmenis, whilst
revenue and linhiifes are all ceniral'unaliocpted.

2. Imfarmation reported atout Miess segments 22 vEad by managemant 35 002 of Me bagls forevaliating the ssgments’ peErfarmances and fr making
deci=inn= sboul the allocstion of resources. The disclosure of information oboud these sepmerds pe alst considered appropriale for exiemad reparting
purposes

1. SALE has o Mallonal focos and connot disSnguish reporing per Goographic Amma as the information is mot classifled o= such in lhe recomds and & is not
foasible for 5ALB Y0 consider this soproach. The Litnary does hove partnership progrsnmes with 2F Provinees (Min-Liboey Projects ), howowes we acl as
“mitvizarn® anfy. Mo administration or such [ee s charged and the reliforeship = moinky to pset the Provincial Librares to coler for bind and visually mosired
people it the idertified Librasies; e esourcesfinfmstruciure do mot belong o SALB; and hence the ralionale nold 1o report Geographically or separtely an
thin. Fuihermare, expendilure poaned on he Mini-Libranes ane fully reimbursed by e relevanl Provicces
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

24, sagment Reporting cont.
Brzlike
Productbon
2022123 Financial year LEvrary Including
miormetion  |(Audie Mational Brailis
Igrvices Production Conzulfancy |Total

R 000 5 R 00's R 000's R 00's
Revenos
Mia -
Total sagment Revenus - - - -
Expansss
Salaries and wages (3.E17) |2 375} {2,008 [5.201)
Licences - Libmary Sysiom -
Latuss - Croulaon (258) -
AP CD Casinps -
BPF Paper -
Onhemr -
Total sagment Expenass {4,078} [2.3TE) (3.005) [3.201)
Total sagment Deflcit {d.BTE) [2.37E] {3.008) [5.201])
Interest Ruvenues - Urnafocs ol 1,005
Oéher painsiloss] - Unnlincsind [EFal
iJfher urnfloonisdicerinl Revenun 42 158
Intereal Eapenne -
Depreciabon and amortizaiion - umaliocabtediceniral [623)
Othe srafiocatediconim| Expeoas {23.BE5)
Zurphue Tor the Perlod 5,400
Leaets
Segmen| assets {prodoction prooess) BFaT 37,068 35,016
Unallocnfediceniral aasess 26,9373
Tatal Assets 122,788
LE3DHItles
Segmnn| labilbes (nia) -
Unallocniediceniral Lbilites B. 105
Talsl Liapitfies B 103
othar information
Capital experdilure - melocaisdicantal 7458
Accrued expendiure - unaflocatedicensral -
Defered ravonue - snalloeided’cendral 4. 758
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

24 segment Raporting conk.
Brallis
Production
2021122 Financial year Liprary Includeng
information  |Audic Mational Brallia
Sarvices Production consuliency |Total

R 000's R 00's R 000's R M0's
Revanus
n'a -
Tatal segment Revenus - - - -
Expansan
Salmnes and woges 11,7710 13871 DR P (B.ET4)
Licences - Library System -
|Labets - Cinoulntion (214} -
AP CD Casings -
BF Paper -
Oether =
Tatal segment Expensas {1,385) 13.571) {3,352} [B.ET4)
Taotzl segment Defcit {1,285} [3.571) §3.332Y [B.ET4)
Imerest Revanee - Urallocand Gaz
Oxther gain=Nloss] - Unaflocaled 552
Ofher unnflocatediceninal Revenun 41,833
Iieyesl Expenne -
Hapreciabon and smorsaiion - urallocatedicental {357}
Oxher unnfioeatedicontnal Exponsas {23,024
Surpbus for ths Perlod 10,752
Lasets
Segmen| assebs {production process | S3.06E 36062 28,953
Unnllocuted coniral axseis 22475
Toiel Azesta 111,437
LEabHitles
Fegmen inbilfes (nin) =
Unallocatediconial Labdities 8.52%
Total Lizoftties 8,528
Oinar information
Capital expendiiure - winlocaiedicantal 10,343
Accrues expendiure - unnilocaiedicenial -
Delered myenue « nalloctedicental 4 236

NE : There 5fe Ml infer-segmenizd Snsacions s0d Menefive G0-eminaiions RQIved,

25, COVID-15 Impact on Operations
The Caovid- 19 pandemic wes ot prominenl diring the 2033 finencis] year, and there wiene na brkdoan restrictions as gme wenl by, During
the yoor 2023 5 major buikfing and renovations project also contirued of the SALB, This rescalied incthe il cowtyard area of the SALSE
having beren handed ower g She building contraciors to confimes with the wark. Ay enilne flank of offices had o be vacaied for building
corstruction work (o ke piace.

Given thot SALB now had wven less office space i accommodale af =inff | a combinalion of a working lrom home amt allemolinog work: week
arangements kad 1o be implementsd ol the office. The SALB Monasgemen! has enaved that the necessary healis and safety prorcaulions
remmaimed in place =nd thie any major health and safpty risks g mitlgated.
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SOUTH AFRICAN LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

sccounting Autharity
From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023
8r X Yekanl, Ms Mkganedi, Dr H Mphidi, Mr M Buthmingl, Ms F Dubamsns, e R Maboe, D T Mosaln, Mr K Govender, M= D Maraka

Eanlor Management

From 1 Aprii 2022 ta 51 March 2023

Mr Mandla Miambain (CEQ/Doectar) op o 39 Augus! 2022
Or P Nishunizhe-Mmishaya from &7 February 2023

r Yasheen Ramchenan S0} op bo 30 June 2022
Mt P Mnyatheli from 01 January 2033

SigniMcant financial svent

During the 2022 financial year, tvo coses of alleged froud were reporied wihin the arganiation. The boand engoged fomsic modiors i
imeesfigode these motters. The cuses: were finalised i 2027 fnenciol year and the: full amount presumed o tave beon embecrdod was
recowmied. Refer bo irmegudar sxpendire nole bolow.

Commiiments

The SALE had no cophind commibtments: for the 2623 finoncial yoar.
However, the fibrary hiad the following service commmitmmangs;

A Jeyear contract agreement for intenod Audit serdoes which was secored as fom 3 Apd 2022 031 March 2025 with 2 Gnoncinl
a. commitimeni of B 354 632,83

Fibre e secvices 3 yaor contract for the ieom 1 fuly 2020 o 30 me 2023, The mmaining commitrmen armoatbs io
b. oppraoximately R42 808,78

Insamince Services induding brokemge fees effective fom T Ociober 2020 o 30 September 202 with & nemsining cost aof
. npprovimataly R4T 833,68 which s dependant upon addilions o or removal of ilems from the: portiolia.

Irreguiar sxpanditurs End fruitisss and wastaful sxpenditurse

Reconciliafion of Irmegalar Expendilune aod Fruitess and wasseful gxpondiloms

|irregular Expenditune: amd Frubless and wasield sxpendiore

2022

023
R o'
|rreguiar sxpendliure 2475
Less: Ireguiar expendiure reoovend duing e year (2.076)

Frulbiess end wasteTull sxpandiiure
LEss: Friitizes snd wasie i sxpendiire recovered duning Ine yasr
Less: Fruiness sa0 wastel expendbue iransfers 1o recalvsone for meovery

R 000"

T
(E8)
{188}

Chralng balance -

Follawing mrr imvs=tigmtian, the enlice embessded s hos boen iotally recovered. The enlly openes a crimimal case with SAPS

Thare were oo Froliless snd wasiehul expeodiure deslifed duning the yeer. The amownl thal wos facsfered in recehmble for recovety has been moovered

Carrection of aror

SAlL B recoived amoumis Sl relates o donmtion thod wes eceived by e entity in the prior yeers. The amoant was nol aocounied for in- priar years when
recened: Dunng the year the-omounts wene scosanied for e defered income. The #ffect of the: comection 1o the: fnoncind stmements will be 2s folloss
Increase in acoumakated fumis

Deorease in dalsvred income

Rentaiement of anmual fnencial sisdemenis
The comection of eror obove includes an ampour of RS0 00300 receivod durng the grior year. This omount was sccounded for os deferred income.
To achieve fair presaniniion the fimancial siotemeols haee been resiaded o tskn Sie effed af the cormection ings accoond.
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A TRIBUTE TO OUR DONORS

GOLD DONORS

Steenka Botha Estate R 1461 460

SILVER DONORS

Josie Wood Trust R&T1 000
JE Speling R 205 966
Low & Co Hawbone R 61000
he Lilly &shton Charity R 37 869
G Wagner R 25 000
Fusch Foundation R10 000
Al Zuhlsdorf R10 000

BRONZE DONORS

Frankand Flo Baler R B8 8&7
R 5000
R 146
R 3 e00
R 2200
R1000
FMN vanden Berg R 1000
Bahl Residents R 1000
Mary Dutton R 1000
D Kruger R 500
B 200

[l
I
{

Mrvan den Deventor
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Awarm special thank you is extended to our valued team of volunteer narmators, transcribers, copy-typists and proof-
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